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In accordance with r 4 J
’ 1

Section 1046 of th
Com;:nlesA; 2036 & 0 S I N O 1
ot Registration of an overseas company opening a
Regations 2009 UK establishment g

A fee is payable with this form

Please see "How to pay’ on the last page

J What this form is for % What this form is NOT for
You may use this form to register a You cannot use this form to ¢l &=
UK establishment the details of an existing com) i
. officer or establishment E P ATCNHLRC®
Y X 07/07/2012 #6
COMPANIES HOUSE

Part 1 Overseas company details (Name) e

Do you propose to carry on busimess in the UK under the corporate name as
incorporated In your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

v 2 To register using your corporate name, go to Section A1,
+ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2

% Filling in this form
Please complete in typescript {10pt
or above), or in bold black caprtals

All fields are mandatary unless
specified or indicated by *

Corporate company hame

Corporate name®

IEnergy Mad Limited

|

@ This must be the corporate name in
the home state or country in which
the company 1s incorporated under
which yeu propose to carmy on
business in the UK.

Alternative name

The company wishes to register an alternative name under which 1t proposes to
carry on business in the UK under section 1048 of the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate name®

Alternative name
{if applicable}&»

|
|
|
|

@ Please give your corporate name
as incorporated in your home state
or country

€A company may register an
altemative name under which 1t
preposes to camy on business i the
United Kingdom under Section 1048
of the Companies Act 2006

Overseas company name restrictions©

This section does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA) company
registering its corporate name

Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensitive or
restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a

O Overseas company name
restrictions
A list of sensitive or restncted words
of expressions that rejuire consent
can be found in guidance available
on our website

government department or other specified body www companieshouse govuk
(1 I confirm that the proposed company name contains sensttive or restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropnate, has been
sought of a govemment department or other specified body and | attach a
copy of their response
CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2

Overseas company details

BT

Particulars previously delivered

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment @

v+ No GotoSection B2
9 Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5
of the form Please note the onginal UK establishment particulars
rust be filed up to date.

UK establishment
registration number

SECTTITT T

@ The particulars are legal form,
identity of register, number m
registration, director and secretanes
details, whether the company 15
a credit or financial institution,
law, governing law, accounting
requirements, objects, share capital,
constitution, and accounts.

Credit or financial institution

Is the company a credit or financial institution?®

1 Yes
No

) Please tick one box.

o3

Company details

If the company 1s registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the
details below

Legal form @ Public imited company

Country of INew Zealand

incorporation * I

Identity of register 'New Zealand Companies Office Register

inwhich it s

registered ® I

;eglstratslfn number m IT l—-f—lT[?Fl?l_g_l_l——r—
at register

©This includes whether the company
I1s a private or public company or

whether or not the company I1s
limited

O This will be the registry where the
company is registered in its parent
country

e

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

v 3 Yes Complete Sections B5 and B6.
2+ No Goto Section B6

s )

Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company 1s incorporated

Governing law ©

New Zealand

Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents
under parent law?

v 3Yes Complete the details below
+No GotoPart3.

©This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
incorporation of compantes n that
state

CHFP0O21
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From

To

Months

0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Please give the pertod for which the company 1s required to prepare accounts by
parent law

Please give the penod allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting penod

[2[

Latest disclosed accounts

Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
apphicable, with a certified translation ©

Yes
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed

Please tick this box f you have enclased a copy of the accounts.

[J Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts

[ Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed

@ Please tick the appropnate box(es)

CHFPO21
03/11 Version 4 1




05 INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 3

Constitution

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delivered with this application,
- Certified copy of the company’s constitution and, If applicable, a certfied
translaton.

Please tick the appropriate box{es) below
I have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution. @
[] lenclose a certified translation, if applicable @

QA certified copy 1s defined as
a copy certified as correct and
authenticated by - the secretary or a
director of the company, permanent
representative, administrator,
administrative recerver, receiver
manager, recerver and liquidator

A certified translation into English
must be authenticated by the
secretary or a director of the
company, permanent representative,
adminstrator, administrative
rece(ver, receiver managey, recerver
and hquidator

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

v 3 Yes Goto Section C3
+ No Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company’

Constitutional documents

Avre ali of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the

company?

- Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country
of incorporation

- QObjects of the Company

- Amount of 1ssued share caprtal

2 Yes  Go to Part 4 ‘Officers of the company’
¥ 2 No If any of the above detalls are not included in the constitutional
documents, please enter them in Section C4
The information is not required If it 15 contained within the constitutional
documents accompanying this registration.

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of pnnaipal place of business ar registered office in the
country of incorporation ©

Building name/number

Energy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thomton NZ Limited, International Antarctic Centre

© Thus address wall appear on the
public record

OFlease give a bnef desciption of the

company’s business

Street ‘ 38 Orchard Road O Please speafy the amount of shares

| 1ssued and the value
Post town |Chnstchurch
County/Region I
Postcode I 8 ]?rgl—;g_l_l_l—l_
Country | New Zealand

1 Please give the objects of the company and the amount of 1ssued share capital
Objects of the lDeSIgner, manufacturer and seller of energy efficient ight bulbs
company Q@
Amount of issued $15.593 585 NZD
share capital @ T

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 4

Secretary

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered n respect of
another UK establishment?

+ Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1
and then go to Part 5 of this form
v 9 No Complete the officer details

For a secretary who 1s an individual, go to Section D1, for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E1, for a director who 1s an individual, go to Section F1, or for a
corporate director, go to Section G1

Continuation pages

Please use a continuation page
if you need to enter more officer
details.

Secretary details @

Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company
Please complete Sections D1-D3 For a corporate secretary, complete
Sections E1-E5 Please use a continuation page if necessary

Full forename(s)

Sumame

Former name(s)©

O Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
corporate secretary details.

Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes during the period of

this return Mamed women do

not need to give former names
unless previcusly used for business
purposes

o2l

Secretary's service address®

Building name/number r

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear

Street r on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address,

Past town If you provide your residential
address here it wall appear on the

County/Region public record

Postcode I ’ l I

Country

W Secretary’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary Please tick one box OIf you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty is imited, please

Extent of authority provide a bref description of the

O Lmited © limited authonty in the box below
0 Unhimited

Description of imited
authonity, if applicable

©If you have indicated that you are
not authonised to act alone but only
jomntly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

| Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below

O Alone

O Jontly @
If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly r

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary

m Corporate secretary details®

Use this section to list all the corporate secretanes of the company.
Please complete Sections E1-E5 Please use a continuaton page If necessary.

Name of corporate
body or firm

|
|
Building name/number I
Street l

O Registered or principal address
This 1s the address that wall appear
on the public record This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannat he
a PO box number {unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scottand) humber

Post town

County/Region I

ot ([ [ [ [ ([ [

Country |

E Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

m EEA companies ©

Please give details of the register where the company file 1s kept (including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register

OEEA
A full hist of countnes of the EEA can
be found 1n our guidance

Where the company/ www companteshouse gov uk
firm 1s registered© ©This is the register mentioned in
I Article 3 of the First Company Law
Registration number | Directive (68/151/EEC)
m Non-EEA companies
Please give detars of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by~ |ONon-EEA

which it 1s governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
itis entered (induding the state) and its registration number in that register

Legal form of the l

corporate body
or firm ‘

Governing law

If applicable, where

the company/firm is
registered @ |

If applicable, the
registration number

Where you have provided details of
the register {including state) where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as corporate secretary.
Please tick one box

Extent of authority

O Lmited @
0 Unhimited

Description of limited

©If you have md:cated that the extent
of your authonty 15 hmited, please
provide a brief descnption of the
hrmited authonty in the box below

&If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

authonty, if apphicable authonsed to act below
'ty 1t app Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone

O Jointly®
If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

CHFP021
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Use this sectton to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-FA. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s)

Thomas Willlam

Sumame Mackenzie

Former name(s)®

f;?:xesgte of New Zealand

Nationality | New Zealander

Date of birth lgl% WW WEFF?’-
Business occupation | pyrector

(if any) ©

O Corporate details
Please use Sechions G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details,

© Former name(s)
Please prowide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.
Mamed women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address®

Building name/number

Energy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thomton NZ Limited, International Antarctic Centre

Street |38 Orchard Road
|
Post town | Chnstchurch
County/Region |
Postcode Fl?l_ti—l?lirl—-r—
Country |New Zealand

©Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box
Extent of author
Y 10 umted®
Unlimited

Descrption of imited |

authority, if applicable

©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s hmited, please
provide a bnef description of the
himrted authority in the box below

@ If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s} with whom you are

] Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authorised to act below

3 Alone

Jointly @
lffapphcal(ﬂ‘;- “;’1“9(5’ ‘The other directors of Energy Mad Limited, being Chnstopher
of person{s) wi
whom you are lMardon, Andrew Meehan, Andrew Plympton, and Richard Ramsay,
acting jointly ’andlor such other directors appointed from time to time

CHFPO21
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

1 |

Director_ details ©

Please use this section to hist all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) Richard David

Surmame Ramsay

Former name(s) @

Country/State of New Zealand

residence ©

Nationalrty New Zealander

Date of birth EE WIF FP?IT‘S—F

Business occupation |D|rector

(if any) ©

|

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

© Former name(s)
Please provide any previous hames
which have been used for bustness
purposes n the last 20 years.
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This 1s in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business accupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

r2 |

Director's service address @

Building name/number ’Energy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thornton NZ Limited, International Antarctic Centre

Street l38 Orchard Road
|
Post town |Chr|stchurch
County/Region l
Postcode | 8 W’?’—;[_Ii,—r
Country lNew Zealand

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residental
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPO21
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ﬂ Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director Please tick one box ©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty is imited, please
Extent of authonty Lo provide a bnef descnption of the
O Limited limited authonty in the box below
Unlimited © If you have indicated that you are
not authonised to act alone but only
Description of mited ]t(')‘mtiy. plea;s)e er;;::;vtli:e namets) of
authonty, If apphicable @ person(s) with whom you are
. 1t app Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonsed to act below
O Alone
Jointly ®
i applicable, name(s} |The other directors of Energy Mad Limited, being Thomas
of person(s} with
whom you are !Mackenzre, Chnistopher Mardon, Andrew Meehan, and Andrew
acting jointly Plympton, and/or such other directors appointed from tirne to time

CHFPO21
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1} of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

G

Director details @

Please use this section to hist all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5.

Full forename(s) Andrew

Sumame Plympton

Former name(s)®

CountryIState of Australta

residence ©

Nationality lAustrallan

bweotbrh [z s [o[4 [1[elas

Business occupation |D|rector

(f any) ©

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details,

6 Former name(s}
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This is 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

OBusiness occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director’s service address ©

Burlding name/number |Energy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thornton NZ Limsted, International Antarctic Centre

Street |38 Orchard Road
|
Post town lChnstchurch
County/Regton |
Postcode ’ 8 I—o—l?l?l_,_rr
Country |New Zealand

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

1§ you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFP0O21
03/11 Version 4 1




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening 2 UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box @ If you have ndicated that the extent
of yaur authonty 1s limited, please
Extent of authonty . provide a bnief description of the
O Limited © tmited authenty in the box below
Unlimited ®1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of Imited jointly, please enter the name(s} of
authority, If applicable the person(s) with whom you are
. 1 app Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box. authonsed to act below
0 Alone
Jointly @
'ffBPP“Cﬂl(ﬂ)er ";f‘"e(s) IThe other directors of Energy Mad Limited, being Thomas
of person(s) wi
whom you are lMackenme, Chnstopher Mardon, Andrew Meehan, and Richard
acting jointly |Ramsay, and/or such other directors appointed from time to time
CHFPO21
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ¢

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) lChnstopher Anthony

Sumame | Mardon

Former name(s)®

Country/State of New Zealand

residence ©

Nationality New Zealander

Date of birth ‘9 ’d_fi— ’T"TW FFFW
Business occupation |D|rector

(if any) ©

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details,

€ Former name(s)
Please prowvide any previcus names
which have been used for business
purposes In the last 20 years.
Mamed women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes.

© Country/State of residence
This 15 in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

OBusiness occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address©

Building name/number IEnergy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thornton NZ Limited, International Antarctic Centre

Street 38 Orchard Road
|
Post town Chnstchurch
County/Region [
Postcode [sfolsfa] [ [ [
Country New Zealand

OService address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

CHFP0O21
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OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box.
Extent of authority O Lmited ©

Unhimited

Descrption of imited |

authority, if applicable

O 1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s limrted, please
provide a bnef descnption of the
himited authonty in the box below

@ If you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Jointly, please enter the namel(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

‘ Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box. authonsed to act below

O Alone

Jointly ©
|ff3PP|lcat(’|;f- ";:"E(S) IThe other directors of Energy Mad Limited, being Thomas
of person(s) wr
whom you are |Macken2|e, Andrew Meehan, Andrew Plympton, and Richard
acting jointly ‘Ramsay, and/or such other directors appointed from time to time

CHFPO21
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2003

Director

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Piease complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) Andrew John

Sumame Meehan

Former name({s)®

Country/State of Australia

residence ©

Nationality |Austra||an

Date of birth |“1 [If_ FTW WWEW

Business occupation IDlrector

(if any) @

|

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director detals.

© Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes In the last 20 years.
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1n respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business eccupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address®

Butlding name/number |Energy Mad Limited C/O Grant Thormton NZ Limited, International Antarctic Centre

Street |3B Orchard Road
|
Post town ‘Chnstchurch
County/Region l
Postcode l? |—0—|—5_’?’-l_|7,_
Country INew Zealand

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here 1t will appear on the
public record

CHFPO21
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m Director's authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box. ©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty ts imited, please
Extent of author provide a brief description of the
v O Lmited @ bimted authonity in the box below
Unlimited !f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act atone but only
Description of limited tointly, please enter the name(s} of
authonty, if applicabl the person(s) with whom you are
uthonty, if applicable Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box. authonsed to act below
O Alone
Jointly ©
|ffBPP|lcat('|;!. n:ﬂe(s) lThe other directors of Energy Mad Limited, being Thomas
of person(s) wi
whom you are |Mackenzue, Chnstopher Mardon, Andrew Plympton, and Richard
acting jointly |Ramsay, and/or such other directors appointed from time to time
CHFP021
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director

m Corporate director details @
Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company. O Registered or principal address
Please complete G1-G5 Please use a continuation page if necessary This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This address
Name of corporate I must be a physicat location for the
body or firm delwvery of documents. It cannot be
r a PO box number (unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
Building name/number [ LP (Lega! Post in Scotland) number
Street I
Post town r
County/Region {
Postcode l_l_— |-— | [_[_
Country
E Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm
Is the corporate director registered wathin the European Economic Area (EEA)?
+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only
E EEA companies ©
Please give details of the register where the company file is kept (including the  {@EEA
relevant state) and the registration number in that register. A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance
Where the company/ www companieshouse gov uk
firm 1s registered © ©This Is the register mentioned in
r Article 3 of the First Company Law
Registration number ! Directive {68/151/EEC)
m Non-EEA companies
Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the lawby ~ |ONon-EEA
whch it is governed If apphcable, please also give details of the register in which thWhere Y:E: h(a\'el Pdro\ﬂdei:td)eta::s of
t e register yncluding state; where
it 1s entered (including the state} and its registration number in that register the company ot firm 15 regitered,
Legal form of the r {houtmust talsu provide its number in
corporate body aLregister
or firm r
Governing law ]
If applicable, where l
the companyffirm 1s
registered @ I
If apphicable, the r
registration number
CHFP021
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

E Corporate director’s authority
Plaase enter the extent of your authority as corporate director O1f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one hox of your authonty 1s imited, please
provide a brief descniption of the
Extent of authority O Lmited limited authonty in the box below
©If you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authonsed te act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of imited the person{s) with whom you are
authonity, if apphcable , authonsed to act below
by, app Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box
J Alone
O Jointly ®

If apphicable, name(s) |
of person(s) with

whom you are I
acting jointly

CHFPO21
03/11 Version 41




0S INO1
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Part 5

UK establishment details

Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company's
constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?
v+ No Goto Section H3,

+ Yes Flease enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H2

UK establishment
registration number

sl LTI T

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company’s accounting
documents with matenal delivered in respect of another UK establishment?
+ No GotoSection H3,

+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3.

UK establishment
registration number

ST 1T

Sections H3 and H4 must be completed in all cases

Delivery of accounts and reports

Please state if the company intends to comply with accounting requirements
with respect to this establishment or in respect of another UK establishment ©

In respect of this establishment Please go to Section H4.

03 In respect of another UK establishment, Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4,

UK establishment
registration number

JIERNEREE

© Please tick the appropnate box

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Particulars of UK establishment @

Please enter the name and address of the UK establishment O Address

This 1s the address that will appear

Name of establishment Energy Mad Lirmuited on the pl.lbll( record
Building name/number | St John's Innovation Centre
Street |Cowley Road
Post town | Cambridge
County/Region 'Cambndgeshlre
e[ o[s]a] [o[w[s]_
Country United Kingdom

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the

establishment
Date establishment {2 (!4 "1 ™0 Y2 %0 M1 "1
Date & 1o P2foe1
Business carned on at | gales, marketing and distribution
the UK establishment

CHFP021

03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6

Permanent representative

Please enter the name and address of every person authorised to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment,

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company
Please complete Sections J1-)4

Full forename(s}

Peter James

Surname

Watt

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details.

Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/murmber | St John's Innovation Centre

Street lCowIey Road
|
Post town I Cambridge
County/Region Cambndgeshire
Postcode E F’T r—lT WFS_ [—
Country United Kingdom

OServite address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here tt will appear on the
public record

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative.
Please tick one box

Extent of authority

O Limited ®
Unlimited

Dascription of mited

6 |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authomty i1s imrted, please
provide a bnief description of the
limited authonty m the box below

O1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
jointly. please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

. If applicabl authonsed to act below
authortty, if applicable Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone

O Jomtly©
If applicable, name(s) |
of person{s) with
whom you are |
acting jowntly

CHFPO21
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 7

Person authorised to accept service

Does the company have any person(s) in the UK authorised to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?

v +Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authonsed below,
+No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 "Signature’

[ 1 tfthere is no such person, please tick this box

ki |

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this section to list all the persons’ authorised to accept service below
Please complete Sections K1-K2

Full forename(s)

Peter James

Sumame

| Watt

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details.

2

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Building name/number \St John's Innovation Centre
Street ICowley Road
|
Post town 'Cambndge
County/Region Cambndgeshire
s [cle] 4] [o[W[s]
Country United Kingdom

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residentral
address. Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable

CHFPO21
03/11 Version 41
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 8 Signature
This must be completed by all companies.

| am signing ms form on behaif of the company
 J

Signature Sirature

x N X
Peren. Warr

This form may be signed by
Drrector, Secretary, Permanent representative

CHFPO1
03/11 Version 4 1
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

HPresenter information

mmponant information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there 1s a query
on the form. The contact information you give wll be
visible to searchers of the public record,

Contact name
Ben Robsoh

OuryméTark Solicitors

l Address
10 John Street

Post town
London
[ County/Region

™= [wlc[+[n[ T2[efs

Country
United Kingdom
DX

84 LCN/Chancery Lane
Telephone
020 7067 4300

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with infarmation missing,

Please make sure you have remembered the

following:

[0 The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constrtutional documents exactly

O You have included a copy of the appropriate
comrespondence In regard to sensitive words, if
appropriate

{J You have included certfied copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropnate.

O You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropriate.

O You have completed all of the company details in
Section B3 if the company has not registered an
existing establishment

O You have complete details for all company
secretanes and directors in Part 4 if the company
has not registered an existing establishment

O Any addresses given must be a physical location
They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP {Legal Post in
Scotland) number

[0 You have completed details for all permanent

representatives in Part 6 and persons authorised to

accept service in Part 7,

You have signed the form

You have enclosed the correct fee

o

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the public record, apart from
information relating to usual residential
addresses.

E How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in
respect of a registration of an overseas company.
Make cheques or postal orders payable to

‘Companies House.'

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return it to the appropriate address below

England and Wales.

The Registrar of Compantes, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ,

DX 33050 Cardiff.

Scotland-

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbndge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 SFF.
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

Northern (reland.

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 N R Belfast 1

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address befow.

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE.

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse.gov uk
or email enquines@companteshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

CHFPO21
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NEW ZEALANG
Certificate of Incorporation

ENERGY MAD LIMITED
1719868

Thus s to certify that ENERGY MAD HOLDINGS LIMITED was incorporated under
the Companies Act 1993 on the 9th day of November 2005
and changed its name to ENERGY MAD LIMITED on the 1st day of July 2011

T L\U'Cl) + —H\:s la G-)‘;-h{,‘

el Corret :r Fhe i, |

Registrar of Companies
14th day of June 2012

For further details relating to this company check
http/fwww business govt nz/compantes/app/ul/pages/companies/1719868
Certificate generated 14 June 2012 12 31 PM NZST
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BELL GULLY

Constitution of Energy Mad Limited

1

Interpretation

11

Definitions
In this Constilution, unless the context otherwise requires
Act means the Companies Act 1993,

Board means Directors who number not less than the required quorum acling together as
the board of directors of the Company,

Class means a class of Securitles having identical rights, privileges, imitalions and
conditions and includes or excludes Secunties which NZX in its discretion deems to be of or
not of that Class,

Company means Energy Mad Limited,
Constitution means this constitulion, as altered from time to time,
Director means a person appomted as a director of the Company,

Equity Security means an Equity Security, as defined in the NZSX Listing Rules, which has
been 1ssued, or 1s to be issued, by the Company, as the case may require,

Listed has the meaning given in the NZSX Listing Rules,

Minimum Holding has the meaning given in the NZSX Listing Rules,

NZ Markets Disciplinary Tnibunal has the meaning given in the NZSX Listing Rules,
NZ2SX means the main board equity securnty market operated by NZX,

NZSX Listing Rules means the NZSX and NZDX Listing Rules in force from time to time,

NZX means NZX Limited, its successors and asslgns and as the context permits includes
any duly authonsed delegate of NZX (including the NZ Markets Disciplinary Tribunal),

Ordinary Resolution means a rasolution passed by a simple majonty of the vates of
shareholders of the Company enfitied to vote and voting on the resolution,

Personal Representative means

(a) mnrelation to a deceased individual shareholder, the executor, administrator or trustee
of the estate of that shareholder,

{b) In refation to a bankrupt individual shareholder, the assignea in bankruptcy of that
shareholder, and

{c) inrelation te any ofher individual shareholder, a person appointed or deemed to have
been appomnted to administer property under the Protection of Petsonal and Property
Rights Act 1988, a manager appoinied or deemed to have been appointed

DOC REF 122083340 2
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thereunder, and a donee of an endunng power of attorney complying with that Act,

Representative means a person appointed as a proxy or representative under clause 16 or
a Personal Representative,

Ruling has the meaning given in the NZSX Listing Rules,

Security has the meaning given in the NZSX Listing Rules,

Special Resolution means a resolution approved by a majonty of 75% or more of the voles
of those sharehelders entitled to vote and voting on the resolution, and

Subsidlary means

(a) a subsidiary within the meaning of section 5 of the Act (read together with sections &
to 8 of the Act), and

{b) an entity treated as a subsidiary within the meaning of Financial Reporting Standard
Number 37 1ssued by tha New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants or within
the meaning of any financral reporting standard approved in terms of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993

Construction

In this Constitution, unless the context otherwise requires

(a)

(o)

(©)

(d)

(e)

{0

(@

(h

U

the headings appear as a matter of convenience and shall not affect the construction
of this Constitution,

in the absence of an express indication to the contrary, references to sections,
clauses or paragraphs are to sections, clauses and paragraphs of this Constitution,

a reference to any statute, statutory regulations aor other statutory instrument includes
the statute, statutory regulations or instrument as from time to time amended or re-
enacted or substituted,

a reference to an NZSX Listing Rule includes that NZSX Listing Rule as from time to
time amended or substituted,

the stngular includes the plural and vice versa and one gender includes the other
genders,

the words "wnitten”™ and "wnting” include facsimile communications and any other
means of communication resulting in permanent visible reproduction,

the word "person" includes any association of persons whether corporate or
untncorporate, and any state or government or department or agency thereof, whether
or not having separate lega! parsonality,

references to the Company’s previous constitubion include that constilution as
amended from time to ime, and

words or expressions defined in the Act or the NZSX Listing Rules hava the same
meaning in this Constitution except as otherwise expressly provided in this
Constitution




BELL GULLY

13 Powers of shareholders
Unless otherwise specified n the Act or this Constitution any power reserved to
shareholders may be exercised and any approval of shareholders may be given by Ordinary
Resolution

2. The Companies Act and NZSX Listing Rules

21 Companies Act
The Company, the Board, each Director and each shareholder of the Company have the
rights, powers, dutles and obligations set out in the Act except to tha exdent that, as
permitted by the Act, they are negated or modified by this Constitution

22 Incorporation of NZSX Listing Rules
While the Company Is Listed, those provisions of the NZSX Listing Rules which are required
by the NZSX Listing Rules to be contained or incorporated by reference in this Constilution,
as they may be modifled by any Ruling retevant to the Company, will be deemed ta be
incorporated in this Constituticn and have the same effect as though they were set out in full
with any necessary modification

23 NZSX Listing Rules prevail
While the Company 15 Listed, if there 1s any provision in this Constifution that 1s inconsistent
with the NZSX Listing Rules relevant to the Company, the NZSX Listing Rules prevall No
provision In this Constitution will prohiblt or restnct any action which 1s or may be permitted
by the Listing Rules or the NZX to be taken by the Company, the Board, each Director or the
shareholders of the Company

24 Compliance with NZSX Listing Rules
Subject to
{a) the terms of any Ruling from time to Ume given by NZX, and
{b) the requirements of the Act and any olher applicable legislativa or regulatory

requirement,

the Company shall, for so long as it i1s Listed, comply with the NZSX Listing Rules

25 NZX Rulings
If NZX has granted a Ruling in relation to the Company authorising any act or omission
which in the absence of the Ruling would be in contravention of the NZSX Listing Rules or
this Constitution, that act or omission will be deemed to be authonised by the NZSX Listing
Rules and by this Constitution

28 Effect of failure to comply

Failure to comply with

(a) the NZSX Listing Rules, or

BOC REF 17280340_2
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(b)  aprovision of this Canstitution corresponding with a provision of the NZSX Listing
Rules (whether such provision I1s set aut in full in this Censtifution or incorporated in it
pursuant to clause 2 2),

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any transaction, contract, action or other
matter whatsoever (including the proceedings of, or vating at, any meeting) done or entered
into by, or affecting, the Company, except that a party to a transaction or contract who knew
of the fallure to comply with the NZSX Listing Rules or those provisions of this Constitution
shall not be entitled to enforce that transaction ar contract This provision does not affect the
nghts of any holder of Secunties of the Company against the Company cr the Directors
ansing from failure to comply with the NZSX Listing Rules or those provistons of this
Constitution

Rights attaching to shares

31

32

3.3
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Ordinary shares

Each ordinary share in the Company at the date of adoption of this Constitution confers on
the holder the following rights (in addition to the nghts set out elsewhere in this Constitution)

(a) subject to the nghis of holders of any shares or other Equity Securities which confer
special nghts as to dividends, the right to an equal share in dividends authonsed by
the Board, and

(b}  subject to the nghts of holders of any shares or other Equity Secunties which confer
special rights as to surplus assets, the nght to an equal share In the distribution of
surplus assets of the Company

New shares

Subject to clause 4, further sharas in the Company (including different Classes of shares)
may be 1ssued which have any one or more of the following features

(a) rank equally with, or in priority to, existing shares in the Company,

(b) have deferred, preferred or other special nghts or restricions, whether as lo voling
rights or distnbutions or otherwtse,

(c) confer prefarential nghts to distnbutions of capital or income,
(d) confer special, limited or conditional vating rights,

(e) do not confer voting nghts,

4] are redeemable 1n accordance with section 68 of the Act, or
(g) are convertble

Alteration of rights

The 1ssue by the Company of any further shares or Equty Secunties which rank equally
with, or in prionty to, any existng shares or Equity Secunities, whether as to voting nghts or
distnibutions, shall

(a) be pemitted (subject to clause 4), and
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(b}  not be deemed to be an action affecting the rights attached to those existing shares or
other Equity Secunties

Issue of new Equity Securities

41

42

43

Issue of new Equity Securities

The Board may issue shares or other Equity Secunties to any person and in any number it
thinks fit provided that while the Company is Listed, the issue 1s made in compliance with the
NZSX Listing Rules The provisions of sections 45(1) and 45(2) of the Act shall not apply to
any Issue or proposed Issue of shares by the Company

Consolidation and subdivision of Equity Securities
Subject to any applicable previstons of itus Conshtution, the Board may

(a) consolidate and dnvide the Equity Secunties or Equity Secunties of any Class in
proportion to those Equity Securities or the Equity Securiies in that Class, or

(b) subdmide the Equity Secunbies or Equity Secunties of any Class in proportion 1o those
Equity Securtties or the Equity Secunties in that Class

Bonus i1ssues

Subject te any appitcable provisians of this Constitution, the Board may resolve to apply any
amount which 1s available for distnbution to shareholders either

(2}  n paying up in full shares or other Securittes of the Company to be 1ssued credited as
fully paid to

{1y the shareholders who would be entitled to that amount if it were distributed by
way of dwidend, and in the same proporiions, and

(1) f applicable, the holders of any other Securities of the Company who are
entiied by the terms of 1ssue of those Secunties to participate in bonus issues
by the Company, whether at the time the bonus 1ssue Is made fo the
shareholders, or at some time later, In accordance with their respactive
entitlements, or

{b) w paying up any amount which 15 unpaid on any shares held by the sharehaolders
referred to in clause 4 3(a)(t),

or partly in one way and partly in the other

Buybacks and redemptions of Equity Securities and financial
assistance

51

Powers
The Company may
(a) purchase or otherwise acquire shares 1ssued by if frem one or more shareholders,

(b) purchase or othenwise acquire other Equity Secunittes from cne or more holders,

DOC REF 12201340_2

Censtiwdion




BELL GULLY

{c)  hold any shares or other Equity Securities so purchased or acquired, and

{d) redeem any redeemable shares or other Equity Secunties held by one or more
holders,

in accordance with the provislons, and subject to the restrictions, of the Act, this Constitution
and the NZSX Listing Rules

52 Financial assistance
The Company shall not give financial assistance for the purpose of, of in connection with,
the acquisition of any shares or other Equity Securities 1ssued, or lo be issued, by the
Company unless the gmng of that assistance 15 in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and the NZSX Listing Rules

6 Calls on shares

61 Board's power
The Board may, by notice in wnling to a shareholder or sharehotders, make calls in respact
of all moneys unpaid on shares and which are not, by the terms applicable to the shares,
payable at fixed tmes The Board may revoke or posipone a call before payment I1s
received

62 Liability to pay
Each ralevant shareholder shall be liable {jointly and severally in the case of joint
shareholders} to pay, In accordance with the relevant notice, every call and shall remain
lable to do so notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the retevant shares

63 Differential calis
Calls may be made in respect of certain shares and not others and for different amounts in
respect of certain shares from others The Board may, at the ime of issue of any shares,
differentiate between the holders as to the amount of calls to be paid and the time of
payment

64 Instalments
The Board may determine that a call Is payable by instalments

65 Time call is made
A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time the resolution of the Board authonising
the call was passed

66 Interest on overdue amounts

A call not paid when due shall bear interest from the due date to the date of actual recetpt by
the Company at the rate fixed in the nolice of calt or the terms applicable to the relevant
shares or, if there is no such rate, as the Board determines The Board may waive payment
of interest wholly or in part

DDC REF 12283340 2
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Unpaid instalments

Any amount payable on Issue of a share or on any fixed date or as an instalment of a call
shall be deemed to be a call and if not paid, the provisions of this clause 6 and clauses 7
and 8 shall apply as If that sum had become payable by the making of a call

Cails in advance

The Board may, in its discretion, receive any moneys uncalled and unpad upon any shares
in advance of its due date and, may pay interest on the amount received at such rate (if any)
and on such lerms as the Board determines

Evidence

In any proceedings for the recovery of moneys due In respect of any call a statutory
declaration by a Director or any other person authorised by the Board that

(8) the name of the sharehalder 1s entered in the share register as the holder (or one of
the holders) of the relevant shares,

{b) the resolution making the call 1s recorded in the records of the Company, and
(c)  notice of the call was sent to the shareholder,

shall be conclusive evidance of the indebledness of the shareholder to the Company in
respect of the call

Lien on shares

71

72

Lien on unpaid and partly paid shares

The Company shall have a first and paramount hien on every share which is not a fully paid
share (and any dwidends or other distributions in respect of that share) for

(a) all unpaid calls, Instalments, or other amounts, and any interest payable on those
amounts, relating to that share,

(b} any amounts the Company may be called upon lo pay under any legislation In respect
of that share, and

{c) sales expenses owing to the Company In respect of any such shares

Power of sale

If any ameunt due in respect of a share on which the Company has a lien 1s unpaid for more
than 10 working days after nolice in wnting demanding payment has been given to the
shareholder or the persan entitled to receive notices in respect of that share

(@) the Company may sell the share on such terms as the Board determines, and

{b} to give effect to any such sale, the Board may aulhorise any persan o execule a
transfer of the share to, or at the direction of, the purchaser
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73 Absolute title of purchaser
The tifle of a purchaser of any shares sold pursuant to clause 7 2 shall not be affected by
any irrequlanty or invalidity in any sale

74 Application of sale proceeds
The net proceeds of sale of any share sold pursuant to clause 7 2, after deducting expenses
of sale, shall be applied in and towards satlsfaction of any unpaid calls, instalments or other
amounts and any interest on those amounts and the balance (if any) shali be pard to the
person entitled o the share at the date of sale The remedy of any person aggneved by
such sale shall be in damages only and against the Company exclusively

8. Forfeiture of shares

81 Notice
If a call on a share is not paid when due, the Board may give 10 working days nolice to the
shareholder requiring payment of the call, together with interest on the amount of the call
and any accrued expenses incurred by the Company by reason of non-payment The notice
shall specify the place of payment and state that if the nolice Is not complied with the
relevant share will be hable to be forfeited

82 Forfeiture
If the notice is not complied with the share may, before payment of the overdue amount has
been made, be forfeited by resolution of the Board Such forfeiture will include all dividends
and any other distributions declared in respect of the forfeited shares and not paid or
sabisfied before forferture

83 Sale of forfeited shares
A forfeited share may be sald or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner
as the Board determines To give effect 1o any sale or disposal the Board may authonse any
person to execute any relevant documentation The Board may, at any time before the sale
or disposal, cancel the forfeiture

84 Apphlication of sale proceeds
The net proceeds of sale of any forfeited share shall be applied in the same manner as set
out in clause 7 4

85 Absolute title of purchaser
The title of a purchaser of a forfeited share shall not be affected by any irregulanty or
invalidity in the forfeiture, sale or other disposal of the share

86 Conseqguences of forfeiture

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a shareholder in respect of
those shares and shali surrender the share certificate (if any) for cancellation but shail
remain liable to the Company for all moneys due to the Company at the date of forfeiture in
respect of the shares together with interest thereon until the Company receives payment in
full of alt money owing for those shares
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Evidence of forfeiture

A stalutory declaration by a Diector or any other person authonsed by the Board that a
share has been forfelted on a specified date shall be conclusive ewnidence of that farfeiture

Right of set off

The Board may deduct from the dividends payable to any shareholder, all sums of money as
may be due from that holder to the Company on account of calls, instalments upon the
specific shares tn respect of which the dividend 1s declared, and on account of amounts that
the Campany may be called upon to pay under any statute or legislative enactment in
raspect of the shares of a deceased or other holder

Transfer of shares

g1

92

93

94

Transferor to remain holder until registration

The transferor of a share shall remain the holder of the share until the name of the
transferee is entered in the share register

Right to transfer
Subject to any restrictions contained i this Constitution, shares may be transferred

(a)  under a system of transfer approved under section 7 of the Secunties Transfer Act
1851 which is apphcable to the Company,

(b)  under any other share fransfer system which operates In relation o the trading of
securities on any stock exchange outside New Zealand on which shares are listed
and which 1s apphicable to the Company, or

(c} by an instrument of transfer which complies with this Constitution

Method of transfer

A share which 1s disposed of in a transaction which complies with the requirements of a
system of transfer referred to in clause 9 2(a) or 9 2{b) may be transferred in accordance
with the requirements of that system Where an Instrument of transfer would have complied
with the provistons of the Secunties Transfer Act 1891 if it had been executed by the
transferor in New Zealand, it may nevertheless be reqistered by the Company if it 1s
executed in a manner acceplable to the Company or the Company's share registrar

Forms of transfers

An instrument of transfer to which the provisions of clause 9 3 are not applicable shalf
comply with the following provisions

(a) the form of the mstrument of transfer shall be any usual or common form or any other
form which the Board or the Company's share registrar may approve,

(b) the instrument of transfer must be signed or executed by or on behalf of the transferor,
and

(c) where the shares being transferred are not fully paid up, the instrument of transfer
must also be signed or executed by or on behalf of the transferee
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Power to refuse to register
The Board may decline to register any fransfer of shares where
{a} the Company has a hen on any of the shares,

(b) the transfer s not accompanied by the certificate {if any) for the shares to which it
relates or other evidence as the Board or the Company's share registrar may
reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make the transfer, or

(c} regisiration, together with the regrstration of any further transfer then held by the
Company and awaiting registration, would result in the proposed transferee holding
shares of less than a Minimum Holding,

provided that the Board resolves to exerclse its powers under this clause 9 5 within 30
working days after receipt of the relevant transfer and notice of the resolution is sent to the
transferor and to the transferee within five working days of the resolution being passed by
the Board

Trusts not to be entered on registers

The Company must not enter any notice of a trust on the share register, or any other register
of equity securities, whether that trust 1s express, implied or constructive

Sale of less than Minimum Holding

The Board may at any time give notice to any shareholder holding less than a Minimum
Holding of shares of any Class that If at the expiration of three months after the dale the
notice 15 given the shareholder still holds shares which are less than a Minimum Holding, the
Board may exercise the power of sale of those shares set out in this clause 8 7 If that
power of sale becomes exercisable the

(a) Board may arrange for the sale of those shares through NZX or in some other manner
approved by NZX,

{b)  sharsholder shall be deemed to have authonsed the Company to act on the
shareholder's behalf and to execute all necessary documents for the purposes of that
sale,

(¢} Company shall account to the shareholder for the nel proceeds of sale of the shares
{after deduction of reasonable sala expenses), which shall be held on trust for the
shareholder by the Company and paid fo the sharehelder on surrender of any
certificates for the shares sold, and

(d)  Utle of a purchaser of any shares sold pursuant o this clause 9 7 shall not be affected
by any irregulanty or invalidity in the exercise of the power of sale or the sale itself

Registration of transfers

Every instrument of transfer shall be delivered to the Company's share regisirar, together
with such evidence as the Board or the Company's share registrar may reasonably require
to show the nghi of the transferor to make the transfer

Participation in share transfer systems

The Company may parttcipate In any share transfer system approved under the Secunties
Transfer Act 1991 and implemented by NZX or in any share transfer system which operates
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in relation to trading in secunties on any other stock exchange on which the Company's
shares are traded and, in s0 participating, it shall comply with the requirements of NZX or of
the relevant share transfer system The Board may register any transfer of Securities
presented for regisiration in accordance with the requiremants of any such systern and will
not be obliged to enquire as to the due execution of any transfer effected by reason of such
system

Power to divide share register

The share register may be divided into two or more registers kept in different places

Transfer of securities other than shares

This clause 9 shall apply to transfers of Secunties of the Company other than shares with
any necessary modifications

Untraced shareholders

(a) Entitlemeant to sell

Tha Board will be entitled to transfer to a trust (the Trust) set up for that purpose, the
shares of any person where three or more dividends paid in respect of the shares in
question have remained unclaimed for at least one year after having been authornised
and 10 working days’ prior notice to the intention of transfer the shares to the Trust
has been given

(b  Further securitles

If any further shares have been 1ssued in respect of the shares referred to in
paragraph (a) above, the Board may also transfer the further shares to the Trust
notwithstanding that the requirement that three dividends remain unclaimed for at
least one year after having been authonised may not have been satisfied with respect
to such further shares

(c) Sale by Trust

If at the end of a three year penod commencing on the date of transfer of the shares
to the Trust, and after 10 working days' prior notice of the intention to sell has been
given, no person has claimed ownership of the shares, the Board may arrange far the
sale of those shares through the NZX

(d) Sale procedures

To give affect to any transfers or sale under paragraphs (a) to (c} of ihis clause, the
Board may authonse some person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares
sold to, or in accoerdance with the directions of, the transferee and an instrument of
transfer executed by that person will be as effective as if it had been executed by the
holder of, or person entitled by fransmission to, the shares The transferea will not be
bound to see to the application of the purchase monies nor will title to the shares be
affected by any rregulanty or invalidity in the exercise of the power of sale or the sale
itself

(e} Proceeds

Upon any sale of the shares hy the Trust, the net proceeds of sala (after deduction of
reasonable sale expenses} will belang to the Company The Board will, nevertheless,
agree to pay the net proceeds of sale to a claimanl who produces salisfactory
evidence of entittement but the Board will have no requirement to account for any
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money eamed on the net proceads, which may ba employed in the business of the
Company or imvested in such investments as determined by the Board

Transmission of shares

101

102

103

11

Transmission on death of shareholder

If & shareholder dies the survivor, If the deceased was a joint shareholder, or the
shareholder's Personal Representative, shall be the only persons recognised by the
Company as having any tltle to or interest in the shares of the deceased shareholder
Nothing in this clause 10 1 shall release the estate of a deceased joint shareholder from any
liabihity In respect of any share or constilute a releass of any lien which the Company may
have in respect of any share

Rights of Personal Representatives
A shareholder's Personal Representative 1s entitled to

(a) exercise all nghts (including without hmitation the nghts to receive distributions, to
attend meetings and to vote In persen or by representative), and Is subject to all
Iimitations, attached to the shares held by that shareholder, and

(b}  be registered as halder of those shares, but such registration shall not operate as a
release of any nghts (including any lien) to which the Company was entitled prior to
registration of the Personal Representative pursuant to this clause 10 2(b)

Joint Personal Representatives

Where a share 1s subject to the control of two or more persons as Personal Representatives,
they shall, for the purposes of this Constitution, be deemed to be joint holders of the share

Meetings of shareholders

112

Methods of holding meetings
A meeting of shareholders may be held either

{(a) by a number of shareholders, who constitute a quorum, being assembled together at
the place, date and time appointed for the meeting, or

{b) if determined by the Board, by a number of shareholders, who constitute a quorum,
being assembled together at the date and tme appainted for the meeting and at one
or mora venues at which, by means of audio, or audio and visual, commumcation all
participating shareholders can simultaneously hear each other throughout the
mesting

Meetings of other groups

A meeting of the helders of Securities in an interest group may be called by the Board at any
time, and shall be called on the wnitten request of persons holding Securiies carrying
together not tess than 5% of the voting nghts entitled to be exercised on any of the questions
to be considered at the meeting of the group in question  All the provisions of this
Constitution relating to meetings of shareholders apply, with ali necessary modifications, to a
meeting of a group of Secunty holders, except that
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(@) the necessary quorum is two persons holding, or reprasenting the haolders of,
Secunties in the interest group,

(b) i the Board so elects, one meeting may be held of holders constituting more than one
group, so long as voting at that meeting 1s by way of a poll, and proper arrangements
are made to disinguish between the votes of members of each group, and

{c)  any hoider of Secunties in the group, present in person or by Representative, may
demand a poll

12 Notice of meetings of shareholders

121  Written notice

Whritten notice of the time, date and place of a meeting of shareholders must be sent to every
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the meeting and to every Director and the auditor of

the Company nat less than 10 working days before the meeting A proxy form must be sent

with each notice of meeting

122 Rights of Equity Security holders and Directors

Subject to the rights attached to any Equity Secunties, Equity Security holders of all Classes
shall be entitled to attend meetings of shareholders and to recelve copies of ali notices,
reports and financial statements 1ssued generally to holders of Securities carrying votes
Each Drrector who Is not also a shareholder shall have the same nghts

123 Contents of notice
The notice must state the

{a) nature of the business lo be transacted at the meeting In sufficient detail to enable a
shareholder to form a reasoned judgment in relation to it, and

{b) text of any special resolution to be submilied to the meeting be accompanied by
sufficient explanation to enable a reasonable person to understand the effect of the
resclutions proposed by the nolice

12.4  Irregulanty in notice

An irregulanty in a notice of a meeting 1s waived if all the shareholders entitled to attend and
vote at the meeling attend the meeting without protest as to the rregulanty, or If all such
shareholders agree to the waiver The accidental omission to glve a notice of a meeting to,
or the non-receipt of a notice of a meeting by, any person will not invalidate the proceedings
at the meeting

125 Adjourned meetings

If a meeting of shareholders 1s adjourned for less than 30 days it 1s not necessary to give
notice of the ime, date and place of the adjourned meeting other than by announcemant at
the meeting which 15 adjoumed
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13. Chairperson of meetings of shareholders

131  Chalirperson of the Board to act
Subject to clause 13 2, If the Directors have elacted a chalrperson of the Board, and the
chairperson of the Board 1s present at a meeting of shareholders, that Director must charr
the meeting

132  Other chairperson
If no charperson of the Board has been elected or If at any meeting of sharehalders the
chairperson of tha Board 1s not present within 15 minutes of the ime appointed for the
commencement of the meeting or the chairperson 1s unwilling or unable 1o act for all or part
of the meeting, the Directors present, if any, may elect one of their number to be chatrperson
of the meeting or such part of the meeting If no Director is willing or able to act as
chairperson or if no Director is prasent within 15 minutes of the time appointed for the
commencement of the meeting, the shareholders present may choose one of their number
to be chairperson

133 Regulation of procedure
Subject to the prowisions of the Act, and except as otherwise provided in this Conshtution,
the chairperson may regulate the proceedings at meetings of shareholders

14 Quorum for meetings of shareholders

141  Quorum required
Subject to clause 14 3, no business may be transacted at a meeting of shareholders if a
quorum is not present

142  Size of quorum
A quorum for a meeting of shareholders 1s present ff three shareholders having the right to
vote at the meeting are present \n person or by Reprasentative

143  Lack of quorum

If a quorum 1s not present within 30 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting

(a} n the case of a meeting called by the Board on the request of shareholders under
section 121(b) of the Act, the meeting 1s dissolved, and

(b)  n the case of any other meeting, the meeting 1s adjoumned to the same day n the
following week at the same time and place, or to such other date, iime, and place as
the Direclors may appomt and if, at the adjourned meeting, a quorum s not present
within 30 minutes after the time appointed for the commencement of the meeting, the
shareholders or their Representatives present will constitute a quorum
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15  Voting at meetings of shareholders
151 Meetings in one place
In the case of a maeting of shareholders held under clause 11 1(a), unless a poll 1s
demanded, voting at the meeting shall be by whrchever of the following methods 1s
determined by the chairperson
{a) wvoling by voice, or
{b) voting by show of hands
152  Audio-visual meetings
in the case of a meating of shareholders held under clause 11 1(b), unless a poll1s
demanded, voting at the meeting shall be by the shareholders signifying their assent or
dissent by voice
153 Postal votes
Unless the Board determines otherwise, shareholders may not exercise the night to vole at a
meeting by casting a postal vote, whether on a show of hands, voice, vote or on a poll [f the
Board determines that sharsholders may exercise the nght to vote at a meeting by casting
postal votes, the procedures in relation to postal voting shall be those set out in clause 7 of
the First Schedule of the Act together with any other procedures determined by the Board
154  Number of votes
Subject 1o the prowisions of clause 15 5 and subject to any nghts or restrctions attached to
any share
(a) where voting Is by voice or a show of hands, every shareholder present in person or
by Representative has one vote, and
(b} on a poll every shareholder present in person or by Representative has
(h  one vote In respect of every fully paid share held by that shareholder, and
(i} nrespect of each share held by that shareholder which is not fully paid, a
fraction of the vote or votes which would be exercisable if that share was fully
paid That fraction must be equivalent to the proporlion which the amount paid
(not credited) is of the total amount paid and payable (excluding amounts
credited and amounts paid in advance of a call}
155 Voting restrictions
No shareholder shall be entitled to vole at any meeting m respect of shares on which any
call or other moneys are due and unpaid
156 Declaration of chairperson conclusive

A declaration by the chairperson thal a resolution 1s carned by the requisite majornity s
conclusive evidence of that fact unless a pall 1s demanded in accardance with clause 157
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Right to demand poll
At a meeting of shareholders a poll may be demanded by
(@) not less than five shareholders having the nght to vote at the meeting,

{b) ashareholder or shareholders representing not less than 10% of the total voting nghts
of all shareholders having the nght to vote at the meeting,

{c) a shareholder or shareholders holding shares that confer a night to vote at the meeting
and on which the aggregate amount paid up 1s not less than 10% of the total amount
paid up on all shares that confer that nght, or

(d} the chawrperson

For the purposes of this clause 15 7, the instrument appointing a proxy to vote at a meeting
of the Company confers authorily to demand or join in demanding a poll and a demand by a
person as proxy for a shareholder has the same effect as a demand by the shareholder

Time of demand for poll

A polt may be demanded either before or after the vole is taken on a resolution  The
demand for a poll may be withdrawn

Timing of poll

A poll demanded on the election of a chairperson of a meeting or on a questien of
adjournment must be taken immediately The chairperson may determine the time and
manner in which a poll on any other question 15 to he taken and any business other than that
upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with pending the taking of the

poll

Counting of votes on poll

If a poll is taken, votes must be counted according to the votes attached {o the shares of
each shareholder present in person or by Representative and voting, or exercising its nght to
vote by casting a postal vote, If applicable

Scrutineers

If a poll 1s taken the scrutineers shall be the auditers of the Company for the time being
unless they are unable or unwilling fo act ar unless the chairperson directs to the contrary in
which case the scrutineers shall be appointed by the chairperson

Declaration of result

The chairperson shall be entitled to declare the result of a paoll upon the raceipt of a
certificate fram the auditors setting out the maximum number of votes which could be cast at
the meeting and upon receipt of notice from the scrutineers that, in the hght of the auditars'
certificate, sufficient voles to determine the resuit of the resolution have been counted The
auditors' certificate may set out the maximum number of votes which could ba cast at the
meeting If al} persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting did so, or # may set out the
maximum number of votes which could be cast at the meeting If all persons at the meeting
who are entitled to vote did vote
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Chairperson’s casting vote

The chairperson of a meeting 1s entitled to a casting vote

Votes of joint holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holder of a share, ihe vote of the person
named first in the share register and voting on a matter must be accepted to the exclusion of
the voles of the other joint holders

Validity of votes

In the case of any dispute as fo the admussion or rejection of a vote the chairperson shall
determine the same and such determination made in good faith shall be conclusive

Electronic voting

The Board may permit, in relation to a parlicular meeting or generally

(a) the appointment of proxies or Represerntatives to be made by electronic means,
(b) postal votes to be cast by electronic means, and

(c) tothe extent permitted by law, votes to be casl on resolutions at meetings of
shareholders {or of other groups) by electronic means

The procedures in relation to such electronic appointment or electronic voting shall be those
required by law (If any) together with any other procedures determined by the Board If the
Board permits electronic appointment of proxies or Representatives or electronic voting in
accordance with this clause, such electronic appointments may be made or electronic votes
casl notwithstanding any other provisicn of this Canstitution

Proxies and corporate representatives

16.1

162

163

Proxies permitted

A shareholder may exercise the nght to vote either by being present in parson or by proxy
A proxy for a shareholder 1s entitled to attend and be heard at a meeting of shareholders as
if the proxy were the shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company

Form of proxy

A proxy must be appolnted by notice in writing in the form directed by the Board signed by
the shareholder and the notice must state whether the appointment Is for a particular
meehing or a specified term The proxy form musl, as a minimum (so far as the subject
matter and form of the resolutions reasonably permit) provide for two-way voting (for and
against) on all resolutions, enabling the shareholder to instruct the proxy as to casting of the
vote, and must not be sent with any name or office (e g, "chairperson of directors®) filled in
as a proxy holder

Lodging proxy

No proxy 1s effective in relation to a meeting untess the proxy form 1s received by or gn
behalf of the Company at any place specified for the purpose in the notice of meeting not
later than 48 hours before the start of the meeting  If the wntten notice appomnting a proxy 1s
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signed under a power of attorney, a copy of the power of attorney (unless already deposiled
with the Company) and a signed certificate of non-revocation of the power of attorney must
accompany the notice

Validity of proxy vote

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be vald
notwithstanding the previous death or mental disorder of the principal or revocation of the
proxy or of the authonfy under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the share in
respect of which the proxy 1s given, if no wnitten notice of such death, mental disorder,
revocation, or transfer has been received by the Company at its registered office before the
commencement of the mesting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy 1s used

Corporate representatives

A body corporate which 1s a shareholder may appoint a representative to attend a meeting of
shareholders on Its behalf in the same manner as that in which it could appoint a proxy A
representative shall have the same rights and powers as if the representative were a proxy

Minutes of shareholder meetings

18.

The Board must ensure that rminutes are kept of all proceedings at meefings of
shareholders Minutes which have been signed correct by the chairperson are prima facle
evidence of the proceedings unless they are shown to be inaccurate

Shareholder proposals

19.

A shareholder may give wntten notice to the Board of a matter the shareholder proposes to
raise for discussion or resolution at the next meeting of sharsholders at which the
shareholder is entitled to vote  The provisions of clause 9 of the First Schedule of the Act
apply to any notice given pursuant to this clause

Adjourned meetings and disorderly meetings

181

192

183

Chairperson's discretion to adjourn meetings

The charrperson at any time dunng a meeting at which a quorum is present may adjourn the
meeting (including edther to a later ime at the same meeting or to an adjourned meeting)

Provisions relating to adjourned meetings

No businass can be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the unfinished business
at the oniginal meeting  When a meeting 1s adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the
adjourned mesting must be grven in the same manner as the onginal meetng Otherwlse, it
15 not necessary to give notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an
adjourned meeting

Adjournment of disorderly meetings

If any meeting becomes so unruly, disorderly or inordinately protracted, that in the opinion of
the chalrperson the business of the meeting cannot be conducted in a proper and orderly
manner, the chairperson, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contamed i this
Constitution and without the consent of the meeting, may, in his or her sole and absolute
discretion and without giving reasons, erther adjoumn or dissolve the meeting
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Completion of unfinished business

If any meeting I1s dissolved by the chairperson pursuant to clause 19 4, the unfirished
business of the meehng shall be dealt with as follows

{a) in respect of any rasolution concerning the approval or authonsation of a distribution,
the Board may, in the exercise of the powers conferred on it by the Act, authorise the
disinbution,

{b) i respect of any resalutien concerning the remuneration of the auditors, the meeting
shall be deemed to have resolved that the Board be authonsed to fix the remuneration
of the auditors, and

{c)  the charperson may direct that any item of business which Is uncompleted at the
meeting, and which in his or her opinion requires to be voted upon, be put to the vote
by a poll without further discussion tn accordance with clauses 1581to 1515

Appointment and removal of Directors

20 1

202

203

204

20.5

206

Number

The number of Directors must not at any tme be more than ten nor less than three and
subject to these imitations the number of Directors to hold office shall be fixed from tme 10
time by the Board At least two Directors must be ordinanly resident in New Zealand

Existing Directors to continue in office

The Directors in office at the date of adoption of this Constitution shall continue in office
subject to the provisions of this Constitution

Appointment and removal by Ordinary Resolution

Subject to the NZSX Listing Rules, a Director may be appointed by Ordinary Resolution  All
Directors shall be subject to removal from office as director by Ordinary Resolution

Appointment by Board

Subject to the NZSX Listing Rules, the Board may at any tme appoint additional Directors to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition fo existing directors

Exceptions to rotation

One Director who I1s an employae of the Company (whether or not a Managing Director) 1s
not required to retire by rotation If thera 1s more than one Director who 1s also an employee
of the Company (whether or not a Managing Director} the Board may nominate which one of
those Directors i1s not liable to retire by rotation  That executive Director shall be included in
the number of Directors upon which the calcutation of the number of Directors to retire by
rotation 1s made

Appointment of Directors to be voted on individually
No resolution to appoint or elect a Director shall be put to the holders of Securnties unless

{a) the resolution is for the appointment of one Director, or
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{b) the resolution is a single resolution for the appointment of two or more Direclors, and
a separate resolution that it be so voted an has first been approved withou! a vote
being casl against it

Nothing in this clause prevents the election of two or more Directors by ballot or poll

207 No shareholder qualification for Directors
There 1s no shareholding qualification for Directors
20.8 Vacation of office
A Director shall cease to hold office as a Director if the Director
(a8) dies,
(b}  becomes bankrupt or makes an arrangement or compromise with the Director's
creditors generatly,
(c) becomes disquallfied from being a Director pursuant to section 151 of the Act,
{d) resigns from office by notice in writing to the Company,
{e) 15 removed from office pursuant to this Constitution or the Act, or
(N has for more than six months been absent without permisston of the Board from
meetings of the Board held during that period
209 Timing of retirement and appointment

If

(@) aDirector retires at a meeting of shareholders and 1s not re-elected, the Director shall
remain in office until, and his or her retirement shall take effect at, the concluston of
the meeting,

(b)  aDireclor 1s removed from cffice at a meeting of shareholders by Ordinary Resolution,
the Durector shall remain in office untl), and his or her removal shall take effect at, lhe
conclusion of the meeting,

(¢) aperson wha is not already a Director is appointed or elected as a Direclor at a
meeting of shargholders, that person shall take offica as a Director mmediately after
the conclusion of the meeting
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Alternate Directors

211

212

213

214

215

Appointment

Each Diraclor may from ime to time appoint any person who Is not already a Director and
who 1s approved by a majonty of the other Directors to be the Director's alternate director
(an Alternate Director) No Director may appoint a deputy or agent otherwise than by way
of appointment of an Alternate Director

Form of appointment and removal

Any appointment or removal of an Alternate Director must be by notice in writing to the
Company signed by the relevant Director

Rights of Alternate Director
Each Alternate Director will be entitled to

{a) recewve notices of all meetings of the Board If the Director who appointed the Alternate
Director is known to be either outside of New Zealand or otherwise unavailable to
attend meehings,

(b) attend and vote at any such meeting at which the Director who appointed the
Alternate Director 1s nat persanally present, and

(c} nthe absence of the Director who appointed the Alternate Director, perform all the
functions, and exercise all the powers, of that Director

Remuneration and expenses
Each Alternate Direclor's

(a) remuneration {if any) must be paid by the Director who appomnted the Alternate
Director, and

(b) expenses incurred In attending meetings of the Directors and otherwise in relation to
the diacharge of duties will be paid by the Company

Cessation of appointment
An Alternate Director will cease to be an Alternate Director

(a) if the Director who appointed the Alternate Director ceases 1o be a Director or revokes
the appointment,

(b) on the occurrence of any event relating to the Alternate Director which, if the Alternate
Director were a Dlrector, would disqualify the Alternate Director from being a Directar,
or

(c) 1f a majonty of the other Directors resolve to revoke the Alternate Director's
appointment
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22  Managing Director

221  Appointment and removal

The Board may from fime to time appoint ane of the Directors to be the managing Director
either for a fixed term (but not exceeding five years) and on such other terms (including
remuneration) as the Board determines A managing Director may be re-appointed for a
further period not exceeding five years, and may be re-apponted for a further term of five
years in the same manner The Board may from time to time remove any such managing
Directar and appoint another or others in his or her place  Any managing Director who is
removed by resofution of the Board shall have no nght or ctaim to continue in office and his
or her only remedy against the Company (if any) shall be in damages Any Director holding
the office of managing Director at the date of adoption of this Constitutton shall continue 1n
office

22,2 Resignation

A managing Director shall, subject to the provisions of any contract between him or her and
the Company, be subject to the same provisions concerning resignation, removal and
disqualification as the other Directors  If a managing Director ceases 1o hold the office of
Director from any cause he or she immediately ceases to be managing Director

223 No alternate managing Director

The power to appoint alternate Directors conferred en Directors by this Constttution does not
confer an any managing Director the power to appoint an alternate managing Director

23 Proceedings of the Board

231 Methods of holding meetings
A meeting of the Board may be held atther by

(a) anumber of the Directors who constifute a quorum, being assembled together at the
place, date and time appointed for the meeting, or

(b} means of audio, or audio and visual, communication by which all the Directors
participating and consttuting a quorum can simultaneously hear each other
throughout the meeting

232 Notice of meeting

A Director or, if requested by a Director to do so, an employee of the Company or a
Subsidiary of the Company approved by the Board for this purpose, may convene a meeting
of the Board by giving nolice i accordance with this clause 23 2 and clause 233 Each
Director must be given not less than two days notlice of a meeting of the Board, unless the
Director waives that nght or in the opinion of the chairperson or of Directors who would
together constitute a quorum at the meeting, the meeting 1s necessary as a matter of
urgency, in which event such notice as 1s practicable in the circumstances shall be given
Notice may be given to a Director in any of the following ways

(a) by telephone to the telephone number gwven by the Director to the Company for
purposes of recaiving notices, in which case the notice will be deemed to be given
when the calt 1s answered at that time,

BOC REF 122033402
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(b} by delivery of the notice to the Director, in which case the notice will be deemed to be
given when delivered,

(c) by sending the notice by facsimile transmission to the facsimile number given by the
Director to the Company for the purpose of receiving notices, in which case the notice
will be deemed to be given when sent,

(dy by posling the noltce to the address gwen by the Direclor for the purpose of receiving
nolices, 1h which case the naotice will be deemed to be gven three days after it Is
posted, or

(e) by sending by electronic means in accordance with any request made by the Director
from time to time for such purpose

Contents of notice

A nolice of a meeting must specify the date, time and place of the meeting and, if the
meeling is to be by means of audio or audio and visual communication, the manner in which
the Director will be conlacted to participate at the ime of the meeting

Waiver of irregularity

An rrregulanty in a notice of meeting 1s waived if all the Directors entifled to receive notice of
the meeting attend or participate In the meeting without protest as fo the irregulanty or if all
Directors entitled to receive notice of the meeting agree to the waiver

Quorum

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, a quorum for a meeting of the Board is
threeDirectors No business may be transacted at a meeting of the Board unless a quorum
1s present

Lack of quorum

If a quorum is not present within 30 minutes after the time appointed for a meeting of the
Board, the meeting will be adjourned automatically until the following day at the same time
and place [f at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within 30 minutes from the
time appointed for the meeting the Directors present will constitute a quorum

Insufficient number of Directors

The Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their bady, but If and for so long as
their number 1s reduced below the munimum number fixed by clause 20 1, the continuing
Directors may act for the purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that number or of
summoning a meeting of Shareholders, but for no other purpose

Chairperson

The Directors may elect one of therr number as chairperson of the Board and determine the
period for which the chairpersan is to hotd office  If no chalrperson is elected, or if at any
meeting the chawperson 1s not present within five minutes after the time appointed for the
commencement of the meeting, the Directors present may choose one of their number to be
chairperson of the meeting
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239 Votes
Evary Director has one vote In the case of an equalty of votes the chairperson will have a
cashing vote A resolution of the Board 1s passed if it 1s agreed to by all Directors present
without dissent or a majority of the votes cast on 1t are in favour of it A Director present al a
meeting of the Board 18 presumed to have agreed to, and to have voted in favour of, a
resolution of the Board unless that Director expressly dissents or expressly abstains from
voting on, or votes against, the resolution

2310 Resolutions in writing
A resolution in wniting, signed or assented to by at least three-quarters of the Directors
entitled to vote on that resolution, 1s as valid and effective as if it had been passed at a
meeting of the Board duly convened and held Each Director must be given notice of the
form of the proposed resolution  Any such resolution may consist of several documents
{including facsimile or other similar means of communication) in ltke form, each signed or
assented to by one or more Directars A copy of any such resalution must be entered in or
kept with the records of Board proceedings

2311 Minutes
The Board must ensure that minutes are kept of all proceedings at meetings of the Board

2312 Valdity of acts
All acts done by any meeting of the Board or of a committee of Direclors or by any person
acting as a Director are valid notwithstanding
(a)  any defect in the appomtment of any Direclor or person acling as a Drector, or
(b) that they or any of them were disqualified, or
(c) any Irregulanty in a notice of meeling

2313 Other procedures
Except as sef oul in this ¢clause 23, the Board may regulale its own procedure The
provisions of the Third Schedule of the Act shall not apply fo proceedings of the Board
except to the extent that those pravisions are included in this Constitution

24. Directors' remuneration

241  Authorisation
The Board may, subject to the NZSX Listing Rules, exercise the power conferred by section
181 of the Act to autherise remuneration and other benefits to and for Directors

242 Expenses

Each Director 1s entitled o be paid for all reasonable travelling, accommodation and other
expenses incurred by the Director in connection with the Direclor's attendance at meetings
or otherwise in connection with the Company's business
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Special remuneration

Without hmiting clause 24 1 the Board may authonse special remuneration to any Director
who 15 or has been engaged by the Company or a Subsidiary to carry out any work or
perform any sennices which is not In the capacity of a director of the Company or a
Subsidiary

Indemnity and insurance for Directors and Employees

251

252

253

26.

Indemnity for Directors

Every Director shail be indemnified by the Company for any costs referred to th seclion
162(3) of the Act and any hability or costs referred to in sechion 162(4) of the Act The Board
may determine the amounts and terms and conditions of such an indemnity

Other indemnities and insurance
In addition to the indemnity set out in clause 25 1, the Company may

(8) indemnify a director or employee of the Company or a related company for any cosls
referred to in section 162(3) of the Act The Board may determine the amaunts and
terms and conditions of any such indemnity,

(b) indemnify a director or employee of the Company or a related company in respect of
any habilty or costs referred to In section 162(4) of the Act  The Board may determine
the amounts and terms and conditons of any such indemnity, and

{c)  with the pnor approval of the Board effect insurance for a director or employee of the
Company or a related company in respect of any liability or costs referred {o 1in section
162(5) of the Act The Board may determine the amounts and terms and condittons of
any such insurance

Interpretation

Words given exlended meanings by section 162(9) of the Act have those extended
meanings In this clause 25

Dividends

261

262

Method of payment

Any dividend or other money payable to a holder of Secunties may he paid by cheque sent
through the post to the registered address of the holder or in any other manner determined
by the Beard and directed by the person entitled to the payment In the case of joint holders,
cheques may be sent to the registered address of the person first named on the register

Currency of payment

The Board may, Iin i1s discretion, differentiate between shareholders as to the currency in
which dividends are to be paid In exercising that discretion the Board may have regard to
tha registered address of a shareholder, the register on which a shareholder's shares are
registered or any other matter the Board considers approptiate In any case where a
dividend 1s to be paid in a currency other than New Zealand currency, the amount payable
will be converted from New Zealand currency in a manner, at a time and at an exchange rate
determined by the Board
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Deductions

The Board may deduct from dividends payable to any sharehelder in respect of any shares
any

(a) unpaid calls, instaiments or other amounts, and any interest payable on such
amounts, relating to the specific shares in respect of which the Company has a lien,
and

{(p) amounts the Company may be cafled upon ta pay undar any legislation in respect of
the specific shares

Unclaimed dividends

Dividends or other manatary distnbutions unclaimed for one year after the due date for
payment may be used for the benefit of the Company untll claimed The Company shall be
entitled to mingle the distnbution with other money of the Company and shall not be required
1o hald it or to regard it as bemng imprassed with any trust All dividends or other monetary
distnbutions unclaimed for five years or more after the due date for payment may be forfeited
by the Board for the benefit of the Company The Company shafi, nevertheless, annul the
forfeiture and subject to compliance with the solvency test, shall pay the dvidend or other
monetary distribttlon to the person producing evidence of entittement

Notices

271

272

273

28

Method of service

All nolices, reports, accounts or documents required to be sent to a shareholder shall be
sent in the manner set out in section 391 of the Act Notices to any other person shall be
sent In the same manner as if that person was a shareholder

Service of notices outside New Zealand

{f a Securnity holder has no registered address within New Zealand and has not supplied to
the Company an address within New Zealand for the grving of notices, but has supphed an
address outside New Zealand, then notices shall be posted to the holder at that address and
shall be deemed ta have been received by the holder 24 hours after the time of the posting

Joint holders

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a Secunty by gwing the notice
to the joint holder named first in the register in respect of the Secunty

Inspection of records

Excapt as provided in the Act or unless the Board determines otherwise in any particular
case, no holder of Secunities shall be entitled to

(a) nspect any records, books, papers, correspondence or documents of the Company,
or

(b} require or recewve any information concerning the Company's busmess, trading or
customers, or any trade secret or secret process of or used by the Company
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29. Liguidation

29 1  Distribution of surpius
Subject to the nghts of the holders of any Secunties in the Company and to clauses 29 2 and
29 3, upon the liquidation of the Company the surplus assets of the Company (if any) must
be distributed amohg the shareholders in proportion to theirr shareholding If any
shareholder's shares are not fully paid up the hquidator of the Company may reguire those
shares to be fully paid up before the shareholder receives any distnbution of the surplus
assets of the Company in respect of those shares

282 Distribution in kind
With the approval of the shareholders of the Company by Ordinary Resolution, the hquidator
of the Company may divide amongst the shareholders in kind the whole or any part of the
surplus assets of the Company (whether or not they are of the same kind) and for that
purpase the hiquidator may
(a) attnbute values to assets as the liquidator conslders appropnate, and
(b) determine how the diviston will be carnied out as between the shareholders or different

Classes of shareholders

293 Trusts
With the approval of the shareholders of the Company by Ordinary Resolution, the quidator
may vest the whole or any part of any surplus assets of the Company n trustees upon trust
for the benefit of shareholders of the Company The liguidator may determine the terms of
the trust

30. Method of contracting

301 Manner of execution

A contract or other enforceable obligation may be entered into by the Company as follows

(a) an obligation which, If entered inte by a natural person, would, by law, be required to
be by deed, may be entered 1nto on behalf of the Company in wnting signed under the
name of the Company by

()] two or more Directors,

()  any Director or another person authonsed by the Board, whose signature must
be witnessed, or

(m)  one or more attorneys appointed by the Company in accordance with this
constitution,

(b}  an obligation which, if entered into by a natural persen, ts by law, required to be in
writing, may be entered into on behalf of the Company in wnting by a person acting
under the Company's express or imphed authonty, and

(c) an oblgaton which, if entered into by a natural person, 1s not, by law, required to be in
writing, may be entered inte on behalf of the Company n writing or orally by a person
acting under the Company's express or implied authority
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Company may appoint attorneys

The Company may, by an instrument in writing executed in accordance with clause 30 1,
appoint one or more persons as its atlorney or attorneys either generally or in relalion to a
specified matler or malters  An act of an attorney n accordance with the mstrument binds
tha Company

28
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the shareholders of Energy Mad Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Energy Mad Limited (‘the Company’) on pages 5 to
48, which compnse the statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012, the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements that include a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information for both the Company and the Group
The Group comprises the Company and the entities 1t controlled at 31 March 2012 or from time
to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements 1n accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of
the matters to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur andit We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and
International Standards on Auditing, These standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financizal statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audat involves performing procedures to obtain audit ewndence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those nsk assessments, the auditors
consider the internal controls relevant to the Company and the Group’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opimon on the effectiveness of the Company and the Group's internal control, An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a
basis for our audit opinton

Other than 1n our capacity as auditors we have no relationship wath, or interests in, Energy Mad
Limited or any of 1ts subsidiaries

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 5 Sir Gil Simpson Drive, Burnside, PO Box 13 244, Christchurch 8053, New Zealand
T +64 (3) 374 3000, F +84 {3} 374 3001, www pwc.com/nz
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Energy Mad Limited

Opinion
In our opmion, the financial statements on pages 5 to 48:

() comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
(1) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(i)  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1){(e) of the Financial Reporting Act
1993, In relation to our andit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

(1) we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required, and

(i) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as
appears from an examination of those records

Restriction on Distribution or Use

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section
205(1) of the Companies Act 1993 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company's shareholders those matters which we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

//‘,%;

Chartered Accountants Chnistchurch
27 May 2012
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Financial Reporting Act 1993 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
that give a true and fair view of the financial position cof the Company and Group and of the financial performance
and cash flows for that perod
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

Select suitable accounting polictes and apply them consistently,

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy, at
any time, the financial position of the Group and 1o enable them to ensure that the financtal statements comply
with the Compamies Act 1993 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the following financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

The Board of Directors of the Company and Group authonsed these financial statements for 1ssue on 27 May
2012

For and on behalf of the Directors

Rick Rams Andrew Plympton

Chairman Director
27 May 2012 27 May 2012
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Statements of comprehensive income

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes NZ§ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$
PRevenue [ 6 208 633 8 531,072 - -
Cost of sakes 3,804,964 5721 307 - -
Gross profit 2,403,669 2,869,765 - -
Administration and general expenses 7 3,503,362 2,329,596 244,799 100,571
Imparment of advances to subsidiares 35 - 9 451,964
Reversal of impairment in investment ioan capial 17 (549,810) - -
Reasults trom continulng actlvities (1,099,693) 1,089,979 (9,696,763) {100,571)
Finance ncome 15517 844 38,244 -
Finance expenses 82,215 182,763 49,767 160,201
Total finance costs 7 {66,698) (181,919) (11,522) (160,201)
Protit / {loss) before taxatlon from continuing
activitles {1,166,391) 908,060 (9,708,284) (260,771)
Income tax expense 10 205,349 (93,368) 46,478 64,156
Protit / {los s} tor the year tfrom continulng
operations {961,042) 814,692 (9,661,808) {196,614)
Lass for the year from discontinued operations 26 (186,691) (894,778) -
Protit ! {loss) tor the year (1,147,733) {80,086} {9,661,806) (196,614)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange gain / {loss) on translating foregn operations 51,776 84,616 - -
Total other comprehensive Income for the year 51,776 84,616 - -
Total comprehenslve income / {loss) for the year {1,095,857) 4,530 (9,661,8086) {196,614)
Earnings per share 28
Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations (3 03) 001
Loss from discontinued cperations {0 01) {0 01)
Total (003) (000)
Diluted earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations {0 03) 001
Loss from discontinued eperations {0 01) (001)
Tatal {003) (000)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Statements of changes in equity (Group)

Foreign exchange Share Accumulated Total
translation reserve capital losses equity
Notes NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$
Group
Batance at 1 April 2010 - 10,283,215 (7,101,394) 3,181,821
lssue of share captal 27 - 1,091,915 - 1,091,915
Transaction costs - {35,363) - {35,363}
Transactions with ow ners - 1,056,552 - 1,056,552
Total comprehenswe income for the period - (80,086) (80,086)
Other comprehensive income 84,616 - - 84,616
Balance at 31 March 2011 84,616 11,339,767 {7,181,480) 4,242,903
Foreign exchange Share Accumulated Total
translation reserve capital losses aquity
NZ$ NZ$ NZ§$ NZ$

Group
Batance at 1 April 2611 84,616 11,339,767 (7,181,480) 4,242,903
Issue of share captal 27 - 5,076,500 - 5,076,500
Transaction costs 27 - {822,682) - {822,682}
Transactions with owners - 4,253,818 - 4,253,818
Tota! comprehensive income for the peniod - - {1,147.733) (1.147,733)
Other comprehensive Income 51,776 - - 51,776
Balance at 31 March 2012 136,392 15,593,585 (8,329,214) 7,400,763

The accompanylng noles lorm part of these financlal statements
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Statements of changes in equity (Company)

Foreign exchange Share Retained Total
translation reserve capital earnings equity
Notes NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$
Company
Balance at 1 April 2010 - 10,283,215 (469,335) 9,813,880
Issue of share captal 27 - 1,091,915 - 1,091,915
Transaction costs - (35,363) - {35,363)
Transactions with ow ners - 1,066,552 - 1,056,552
Total comprehensive mcome for the perod - - (196,614) (196,614)
Balance at 31 March 2011 - 11,339,767 (665,949) 10,673,818
Share Retained Total
capital earnings squity
Notes NZ$ NZ§ NZ$
Company
Balance at 1 April 2011 11,339,767 (665,949 10,673,818
lssue of share capital 27 - 5,076,500 - 5,076,500
Transaction costs 27 - (822,682) - (822,682)
Transactions with ow ners - 4,253,818 - 4,263,818
Total comprehensve income tor the period - - {9,661,806) (9,661,806)
Balance at 31 March 2012 - 15,593,585 {10,327,756) 5,265,829

The accompanying noles form part of these financial statements
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Statements of financial position

Group Company
March March March March
2012 20m 2012 201
Noles NZ$§ NZ$ NZ$ NZ§
Currenl assels
Cash and cash equwalents 13 583,569 94,106 -
Income tax refund 21,893 17,763 81 -
nventories 15 1,710,977 322,256 -
Trade and other recewables 14 1 296 647 1,358,514 41,904 850,000
Advances lo subsidianes 35 - 4,944 305 10 820,282
Total current assets 3,613,086 1,792,639 4,986,289 11 470,282
MNon current assets
ntangible assets 19 1,519,403 1,322,998 -
nvestment i subsxianes 16 - 66,660 1 000
Property, plant and equipment 18 96,505 32,008 - -
Cther financial assets 17 1,353,424 1,353,424 - -
Deferred tax 20 2516,113 2310,764 243 530 197,052
Total non current assels 5 485 445 5019 194 310,190 198,052
Assats and disposal group classdied as dscontnued 26 18,533 375,764 -
Total assets 8,117,064 7,187,597 5,206 479 11,668,334
Current liablities
Trade and other payables 21 1,452,062 486,047 30,650 600
Revenue recewved In advance 22 97,773 69,858 -
Employee entitlements 23 154,583 158,534 -
Convertible loans {unsecured) 24 657,437 - 657,437
Converthie loans (secured) 25 - 336,479 - 336 479
Total current llabillties 1,704,418 1,708,355 30,650 994 516
Totel llabititles 1,704,418 1,708,355 30,650 994,516
Liabilites clagsdied as dscontnued 26 11,882 1,236,340 -
Equity
Share captal 27 15,593,585 11,339 767 15,593,585 11 339,767
Other components of equity 136 392 84 616 -
{Accumulated defici)/retained earnings {8,329,214) {7,181,480) {10,327,756) {665,049}
Total equlity 7,400,763 4,242,903 5,265,829 10,673,818
Total equlity and fiabilities 9117064 7,187,597 5,206,479 11 668 334

The accompanylng notes form part of these financlal statements
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Statements of cash flows

Group Com pany
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$

Operating activities
Cash was recelved from:
Receipts from customers 5,175,182 9,061,962 -
Inferest recenved 15,517 844 38244

5,190,699 9,062,806 38244
Cash was applied to:
Interest paw 82,215 182,763 49,767 160,201
Paymenis to supplers and efmmployees 7,364,673 7,399,111 256 653 181,663
Taxation pad 4,130 862 81

7 451,018 7,582,735 306,500 341,864
Net cash Inflow {outflow) from operating
activities 32 {2,260,319) 1,480,071 {268,256) (341,864)
Investing activities
Cash was provided from
BEquity sale (Fupan Ecobulb) 35 473,234 - -

473,234 - -
Cash was applied tor
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets 631,211 422,089 65,660
631,211 422,089 65,660 -

Net cash Inflow (outflow)} from Investing
activities (157,977) (422,089) (65,660)
Financing activities
Cash was provided from.
lssue of ordinary shares 5,726 500 441,916 5 726 500 441 916
Loan funds advanced 35 150 060

5,876,500 441,916 5,726,500 441,916
Cash was applied to:
Advances to / (from) sharehoklers - 3,575,987 (635,217)
Listing expenses 822,682 35,363 822,682 35 363
Loan funds repad 35 160,000 - -
Convertible loans (unsecured} 24 657,437 316 580 657,437 316,580
Converlible loans (secured) 25 336 479 383,326 336,479 383,325

1,966,599 735,268 5,392,585 100,051
Net cash inflow [outflow)} from financing
actlivities 3,809,901 (293,352) 333,915 341,865
Net change vy cash and cash equivalents from continuing
cperations 1,491,605 764,630 -
Net cash tlow s fromdiscontinued operations 26 (1,053,918} {798,308) -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 437,687 (33,769) -
Cash and cash equwalents, beginning of perod 94,106 43,257 -
Effect of foreign exchange rates 51776 84,616 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 583,569 94,106 -
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank 583,569 94,106 -
Eniling cash and cash equivalents carried
forwnrd 583,569 94,106 -

The accompanying notes form part of these financlal statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

The reporting entity 1s Energy Mad Limited (the “Company”) It s profit-onented and incorporated and dormiciled 1n
New Zealand The Group compnsing the Company and its subsidianes 15 a reporting entity for the purposes of
the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act The address of its registered
office 1s the International Antarctic Centre, 38 Orchard Road, Christchurch, New Zealand The Company changed
its name from Energy Mad Holdings Limited to Energy Mad Limited on 1 July 2011

The Group’s pnimary activity 1s the import and distribution of energy efficient light bulbs and installation of energy
efficient products

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2012

2 Statement of complhance

The consolidated financial statements for the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice in New Zealand ("NZ GAAP") and the requirements of the Compantes Act 1993 and the
Financial Reporting Act 1393 They comply with New Zeatand equivalents to Internationat Financial Reporting
Standards ("NZ IFRS") and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropnate for profit-oriented
entities The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments may have an impact on the Group's financial
statements, but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012, and have not been applied in these
financial statements

NZ IFRS 9 Financlal Instruments (effective for annual reporting pertods beginming on or after 1 January 2015)

NZ IFRS 9 Frnancral Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecogrition of financial assets
and financial habiites The standard 1s not applicable until 1 January 2015 but 15 available for early adoption
There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for financial asset or liabilhies, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial habilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabiliies The derecognition rules have been fransferred from NZ 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments Receognitton and Measurement and have not been changed The Group has not yet decided when to
adopt NZ IFRS 9

NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, revised NZ IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(effective 1 January 2013)

NZ IFRS 10 replaces all of the gurdance on control and consolidation in NZ |1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statlements, and NZ IFRIC 12 Consolidation ~ Special Purpose Entities The core principle that a
consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as if they are a single economic entity remains
unchanged, as do the mechanics of consolidation However, the standard introduces a single definition of control
that apples to all entiies It focuses on the need to have both power and nghts or exposure to vanable returns
before control 1s present Power 1s the current ability to direct the activities that significantly influence returns
Returns must vary and can be positive, negative or both There 1s also new guidance on participating and
protective nights and on agent/pnincipal relatronships While the Group does not expect the new standard to have
a significant impact on its composition, It has yet to perform a detalled analysis of the new guidance in the context
of its various investees that may or may not be controlled under the new rules
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NZ IAS 27 1s renamed Separate Financial Statements and 1s now a standard dealing solely with separate
financial statements Application of this standard by the Group and Parent entity will not affect any of the amounts
recogrised in the financial statements, but may impact the type of information disclosed in relation to the Parent's
investments in the separate Parent entity financial statements

The Group does not expect to adopt the new standards before therr operative date They would therefore be first
applied in the financial statements for the annual reporting period ending 31 March 2014

NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective 1 January 2013)

NZ IFRS 13 explains how to measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value disclosures The Group does not
use fair value measurements extensively It 1s therefore unlikely that the new rules will have a signmificant impact
on any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements However, application of the new standard will
impact the type of information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements The Group does net intend to
adopt the new standard before its operative date, which means that it would be first applied in the annual
reporting penod ending 31 March 2014

3 Changes in accounting policy

31 Overall considerations
The accounting policies are consistent with those used in the previous financial year

32 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, labilibes, income and
expenses The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and vanous other
factors that are believed reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
Judgements about carrying values of assets and labiliies that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual
results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-gaing basts Rewision to accounting estimates are
reccgnised in the period in which the estimate 1s revised and in any future perods affected

Judgement has also been exercised in preparing these financial statements in relation to the following

Capitalised development costs

The Group capitalises its development costs based on a proportion of employee costs and other directly
attnbutable development costs The Group regutarly reviews the carrying value of capitahsed development costs
1o ensure they are supported by the associated future economic benefits The development costs are amortised
over five years, being the expected useful e of the development costs (2011 five years) The Group has
assessed the value in use of the development costs Refer to Note 19

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset benefis relating to carried forward tax losses and deductible temporary differences are
reccgnised by the Group and Company to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avalable
against which those temporary differences can be recognised

The Group has recogrised delerred tax benehts in relation to all carned ferward losses as it I1s probable that these
losses will reverse In the foreseeable future Refer to Note 20
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Provision for doubtful debts
The Group has assessed the recoverability of accounts receivables with reference to historical bad debts and
current debtor aging The provision has been assessed at il (2011 $nil)

Prowvision for inventory
The Group has assessed slow moving stock and obsolescence with reference to histoncal wnite offs and current
aging The proviston has been assessed as nil {2011 $nil)

4 Summary of accounting policies

41 Overall consideration
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consclidated financial
statements are summansed below

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by NZ IFRS
for each type of asset, ability, income and expense The measurement bases are more fully described in the
accounting policies below

4.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost

4.3 Presentation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with N2 I1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements The Group has elected to present the Statement of Comprehensive Income in one statement The
Statement of Gomprehensive Income discloses the analysis of expenses using the function method

44 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprnise the Gompany and its subsidiaries The subsidianes
are fully consolidated from the date on which control s transferred to the Group and de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases The Group obtains and exercises control through more than half of the voting nghts  All
subsidianes have a reporting date of 31 March

In preparing the consolidated hinancial statements, all inter entity balances and transactions, and unreahsed
profits and losses ansing within the consolidated entity are eliminated in full

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations  On tnitial recognition, the
assets and habilihes of the acquired subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of financial position at
therr fair values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies Acquisition costs are expenses as incurred

45 Investment In associates (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entittes which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies  Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control established
by contractual agreement and requinng unanimous consent for strategic, financial and operating decisions
Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) Significant
influence generally accompanies a shareholding of between 20% and 50% The Group’s share of post-acquisition
maovements in other comprehensive income 15 recognised In other comprehensive income The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted agamnst the carrying amount of the investment

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and it associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates Unrealised losses are also elminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an tmpairment of the asset transferred
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46 Foreign currency translation

The financial stalements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which 1s the Company's functtonal currency and
the Group's presentation currency All financial information presented in New Zealand dollars has been rounded
to the nearest dollar

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’) The consolidated linancial
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which s the Group’s presentation currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re measured Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and Irabilities denorunated in foreign currencies are recognised in the staternent of
comprehensive income, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other (losses)/gains

The results and financial posttion of all the Group entities {none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentatton currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows

{a) assets and labilies for each statement of financial position are presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position,

(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income ara translated at average exchange rates
{unless this average 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, 1n which case income and expenses are transiated at the rate on the dates of the transactions),
and

{c) all resuling exchange differences are recognised 1n other comprehensive income

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive iIncome When a foreign operation i1s parhially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded In equity are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale
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47 Segment reporting

In identifying its operating segmenits, the Managing Director generally follows four reporting segments based on
the geographical locations of the operations and revenue streams These segments have been determined based
on the reports reviewed by the Managing Director to make strategic decistons

The geographical areas as follows

Segment Activity

New Zealand Sale of energy efficient products within New Zealand
Austraha Sale of energy efficient products within Austraha

United States Sale of energy efficient products within the United States
Rest of World Sale of energy efficient products to all other countnies

Each of these operating segments 1s managed separately as each of these service hines requires different
resources and marketing approaches

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under NZ IFRS 8 are the same as those used In
its financial statements

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported
segment profit or loss No asymmetncal allocations have been applied between segments

48 Revenue
Revenue I1s recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured

Revenuae compnsas the fair value of the constderation recewved or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities Revenue 1s shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after elminating sales within the Group

Sale of goods (wholesale)

The Group sells a range of ecobulbs in the wholesale market Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity
has delivered products to the customer Delivery does not eceur untit the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of cbsolescence and foss have been transferred to the customer

The ecobulb products are often sold with volume discounts Sales are recorded based on the price specified in
the sales contracts, net of estimated volume discounts and returns at the time of sale No element of financing 1s
deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 days, which Is consistent with market practice

Sale of services
The Group sells installation services to customers These services are provided on a ime and matenal basis or
as a fixed-price contract

If circumstances anse that may change the onginal estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress towards
completion, estimates are revised These revisions may result in increase or decreases in estimated revenue or
costs and are reflected in in income in the pernod in which the circumstances that give nse to the revision become
known by management
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Project funder income

Project funder income compnses the farr value consideraiton received or recewable for the contributton or
revenue from project partners who are involved in an initiative 1o assist with the sales and distribution of energy
efficient projects The project funder income received contnbutes towards the direct marketing and bulb subsidy
of a project

Government Grants (NZTE, FRST, MSI and R&D)

Grants from the government are recognised at fair value where there 1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be recewved and the Group will comply with the attached conditions Government grants relating to costs are
recogrised as revenue in the penod necessary to match them with the costs that they are untended to
compensate Grant are received from the New Zealand Government to assist with funding to undertake focused
research and development projects and the development of overseas expansion and growth including marketing
and travel expenditure There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the government
grants recognised in the financial statements

49 Finance income and expenses

Finance income
Interest income 15 recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method

Finance expenses
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss using the effective interest method

410 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habihities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument betng the trade date

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financtal asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred A financial hability 1s derecognised
when it 1s extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires

Financial assets and financial liabiities held by the Group are measured initially at fair value plus transactions
costs

Financial assets and financial liabilittes are measured subsequently as described below

Financial assets
The Group’s tinancial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, equity Investment in
Fupran Ecobulb and advances to subsidianies

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other and receivables and advances to subsidiaries are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted tn an active market  After inihial
recognition, these are measured at amorhised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
imparrment  The equity investment in Fupian Ecebulb 1s a non-denvative financial asset that has been recorded at
cost [ess any prowvision for impairment

Loans and other receivables are considered for impairment when there I1s objective evidence that the Group wll
not be able to collect alf amounts due according to their onginal terms of the receivables  Sigrificant financial
difficulties of the debtor or investee, probability that a debtor will enter bankruptey or finaneial reorgarisation and
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default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
recevable 1s 1impaired

If there 15 objective evidence that impairment exists tor individual loans and recewvables, the impairment loss 1s
calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present value of
esttmated future cash flows using the oniginal effective interest rate  Recevables with a short duration are not
discounted

The Group uses an allowance accouni to reduce the carrying amount of loans and other receivables that are
considered 1o be impaired (or in the case of a reversal of a wnte-down because of an event cccurnng after the
imparrment was recognised, an increase), unless there i1s no reasonable possibiity of recovenng any cash from
the debtor or investee In this case, the Group writes off the recevable direcily (and transiers any impairment
loss recogrised tn the allowance account directly to the receivable)

Other financial habihttes
The Group's financial labilihes include loans and borrowings and trade and other payables

All financial habilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective mterest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabiity for at least 12 months after the reporting date Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred

Trade and other payables represent Liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpard The amounts are unsecured and are usually pard within 30 days of recogrition

The farr value of convertible loans 1s calculated based on the present value of contractual principal and interest
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest in the reporting penod

411 Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the direct method Definitions are

1) Operating Aclivities
Are the principal revenue-producing activities of the Group and other activities that are not investing or financing
activities

2) Investing Activities
All transactions refating to the acquisition and disposal of long term assets and other investments not included in
cash equivalents

3) Financing Actvities
Are activities that result in changes of the equity and debt capital structure of the reporting entity and the cost of
servicing the equity capital

412 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, investments in term deposits
with maturities of less than 3 months, bank overdrafts and other highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible 1o known amounts of cash as part of its day to day cash management and which are subject to an
insignificant nsk of changes in vaiue
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413 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realhisable value Net realisable value 1s the estimated
selling pnce in the ordinary course of the business, less the estimated costs of completron and selling expenses

Cost 1s based on the first-in first-out pninciple and includes expenditure in acquinng the inventories and bringing
them to therr existing location and condition

4.14 Income tax

Income tax on the prolit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Income tax 15 recognised In the
statement of comprehensive iIncome except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, In
which case it s recogrised in equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences arsing on investments in subsidianes, associates and other
financial assets except to the extent that the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 1s controlled by
the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difierence will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s determined by using tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
at reporting and expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability is reahsed or settled

A deferred tax asset Is recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avatlable
against which the asset can be utlised Deferred tax assets are reduced 1o the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised

415 Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, pfant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciatton and impairment
losses Cost includes expenditure that ts directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset In the event that
settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration 1s deferred, cost 1s determined by discounting the amounts
payable (n the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismanting and
remowving the items and restoring the site on which they are located Purchased software that i1s integral to the
functionality of the related equipment 1s capitaiised as part of that equipment

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equspment 1s recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if 1t 15 probable thal the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost
can be measured reltably The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recogmised
in profit or loss as ncurred Property plant and equipment 1s subject to impairment testing as described m Note
420

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparning the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recogrused within “other expenses” in the statement of comprehensive income
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Depreciation 1s provided on leasehold improvements, computers, office furniture and equipment and motor
vehicles Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income to write off the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment, less any restdual value, over its expected useful life, at the following rates

e Computer equipment 14 4% - 60% Diminishing value
*  (ffice equipment 15 6% - 48% Diminishing value
*  Motor vehicles 30% - 36 0% Dimimshing value
» Llab Equipment 409%, Diminishing value

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date

416 Intangible assets

Other intangible assets include acquired and internally developed software used in administration, trademarks
and patents acquired and internally developed designs and development They are accounted for using the cost
model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther estmated useful lives, as these
assets are considered finte Residual values and useful Iives are reviewed at each reporiing date In addition,
they are subject to impairment testing as described in Note 4 20 The following useful lives are applied

»  Software 4 years

¢ Trademarks 7 - 11 years
s  Patents 2 5 years

* Designs 1 - 20 years
*  Research and development 5 years

Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific assel to which it relates  All other expenditure 15 recognised in profit or loss when incurred

Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) 1s recognised as an expense in the period

in which 1t 1s incurred  Costs that are directly atinbutable to the development phase of new ecobutbs and energy

efficient products are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet the following recognition requirements

+ completion of the intangible asset 1s technically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale,

* the Group Intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell i,

* the Group has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset,

= the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits Among other things, this requires that
there 1s a market for the output from the intangible asset or for the intangible asset itself, or, if it 1s to be used

internally, the asset will be used in generating such benefits,

« there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset, and

« the expenditure atiributable to the intangible asset during tts development can be measured reliably
Development costs not meeting these cniter:a for capitalisation are expensed as incurred

Directly attributable costs include employee costs incurred on preduct development along with directly attributable
overheads Internally generated product development recognised as infangible assets are subject to the same
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subsequent measurement method as external product development costs However, unt! completion of the
development project, the assets are subject to iImpairment testing only as described below in Note 4 20

The gain or loss anising on the disposal of an intangible asset 1s determined as the difference between the
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in statement of comprehensive income within
‘other iIncome’ or "other expenses’

417 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entittement and sick leave, are current liabilihes included in trade
and other payables, measured at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement

Liabdities tor accumulating short-term compensated absences (e g, sick leave) are measured as the amount of
unused entitlement accumulated at the pay period ending immediately prior to the reporting date, that the entity
anticipates employees will use in future perieds, In excess of the days that they will be entitled to In each of those
periods

418 Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new ordinary shares
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds

Provision 1s made for the amount of any dwvidend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period

Retained earnings include all current and pnor penod retained profits

All transacticns with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity

419 Leased assets

Leases in which a significant porticn of the nisk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives receved from the lessor) are
charted fo the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-hne basis over the penod of a lease

4.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s intangible assets and property plant and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment  If any such indication exists then the
asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated  For intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet
avatlable tor use, regardless of whether or not there are indications of impairment, the assets are tested for
imparrment annually Their recoverable amount 1s estimated at each reporting date Impairment losses recognised
i respect of goodwill are not reversed

Animparrment loss 1s recogrmised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount  Impairment
losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive income

The recoverable amount of an asset s the greater of its value in use and its far value less costs to sell In
assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounied to therr present value using a pre-tax
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discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the
asset

An impairment loss in respect of other assets 1s assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists An impairrment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount An imparrment loss Is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, If no /mpairment loss had been recognised

421 Goods and services tax

The financial statements are prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and payables that are
shown inclusive of GST Where GST Is not recoverable as an input tax it 1s recognised as part of the refated
asset or expense

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authonty, are presented as operating
cash flows

5 Segment reporting

The Managing Director currently identifies the Group’s service lines as operating segments as further described in
Note 4 7 These operating segments are moniored and strategic decisions are made on the basis of adjusted
segment operating results

Segment profit / {|oss) represents the profit / {loss) earned by each segment including allecation of some central
admenistration costs and Director's salaries, share of equity investment in Fupan Ecobulb, investment revenue
and finance costs and income tax expense This is the measure reported to the Managing Director for the
purpose of resource allocatton and assessment of segment performance

The Group currently derives all revenue from four geographical areas being New Zealand, Australia, USA and the
Rest of the World The discontinued operation segment from the prior period has been removed from the

segment disclosures as it was no longer deemed to be a reportable segment

Segment information for the Group can be analysed as follows for the reporting penods under review

Group - Year ended 31 March 2012 New Zoaland Austratia  United States Rest of World  Biminations Total
Revenue from external customers 328,734 4,446,337 511,178 415219 5811468
Other revenues 367,134 k3] - - 397 165
Depreciation & amortisation (370 310} - - {370,310)
Segment net {loss Y/profd befare Lax (2,124,699} 1,439,554 (357,211) (114 035} {1166 381)
Non current asset addibons 587,606 - 587 606
Segment assets 12279118 222737 530079 10,980 (5949 16} 9,098,531
Segment abilities (6 415 474} (767 816) (380 524) {10,980} 5870376  (1,704,418)

Reconciliation to Profit After Tax

Segment net (lossyprofd before tax (1,166,391)
Loss for the year from dscontinued operabions (186 691}
Income tax expense 205349

Profit / {loss} after tax for the year {1 147 733)
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Group - Yaar ended 31 March 2011 New Zealand Ausiralla Unlted States Restof Warld  Biminations Total
Revenue from external customers 81,679 5814 351 1391733 819 797 8 107 560
Other revenues 474 613 8,899 - 4831512
Deprecstion & amortsaton (355 897) - . - (355,897)
Segment net (loss)/prof i betore tax (716 807} 1878101 (2 124) 17,890 908 060
Non-current asset addibons 428 994 - - - 428 994
Segrent assets 18,689,345 2008,584 72541 - (13 958 637} 6,811,833
Segment kabiftes (14 688 475) {110,774} {765.826) 13856720  (170B355)

Recondlliation to Prolit After Tax

Segment net {koss)/prolit betore tax 908 060
Loss for the year from dscontinued operations {894 778)
Income tax expense {93 368)
Proft / (loss) after tax for the year {80 088)

The segment information 1s reported exclusive of EcoSmartHomes Limited (discentinued operations) Refer Note
26

Other revenues include revenue items dernved from carbon credit sales, grant income and profit share pay-ouls

That number of customers that represent greater than 10% of continuing operations revenue 1s 2 (2011 3) The
total revenues represented by these customers 15 $2,551,159 (2011 $6,021,993)

6 Revenue
Revenue includes the following items

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Sale of eco bulbs and energy efficient
products 5,693,158 7,632,249 -
Project funder income 118,309 475,311 -
Grants {NZTE, FRST, R&D, MSY) 286,593 294,856 -
Fixed payment (Fupan Ecobulb) 54,018 128,869 -
Other income 56,553 59,787 -

Total revenue 6,208,633 8,591,072 - -
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7 Administration and general expenses

Profit / (loss) before taxation from continuing operations includes the following expenses

22

Group Group Company Corm pany
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
Audtt fees 9 30,000 20,000 30,000
Deprecation and amortisation 8 370,210 355,897
Dwectors fees 214,850 56,088
Employment expenses 1,473,511 857,451 -
Exchange (gans) / losses on trading 158,132 195,305 (28,121) 53,513
Lease and rental expenses 95 998 58875 - -
Marketing expenses 297,061 378,738 -
Qtfe and admnsiration 195,494 128,818 -
Rasearch and development 68,117 54,505 .
Other expenses 598,689 223,920 242,919 47,057
Total adminstration and general expenses 3,503,362 2,329,596 244,799 100,571
Interest income on bank deposits 15,517 844 38,244 -
Finance mcome 15,517 844 38,244
nterest expense of loans and borrow ings 82,215 182,763 49,767 160,201
Finange expensas 82215 182,763 49,767 160,201
Total net finance costs {66,698) {181,919) {11,523} {160,201}
8 Depreclation and amortisation
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Depreciation
Computer equipment 5,760 5,975 - -
Office furniture and equipment 21,259 4,688 - -
Motor vehicles 2,834 98 - -
Lab equipment 2,656 - - -
Total depreciation 32,608 10,761 - .
Amortisation of trademarks, patents,
designs and softw are 32,305 47 562 - -
Amortisation of research and
development 305,397 297,574 - -
Total depreciation and am ortisation 370,310 355,897 - -
9 Auditors’ remuneration
Amounts paid to the auditors include
Group Group Company Com pany
2012 201 2012 2011
Auditing financial statements 30,000 20,000 30,000 -
Tax consultng - - - -
Other services - - - -
Total auditors’ remuneration 30,000 20,000 30,000 -

The auditor of the Group 15 PricewaterhouseCoopers
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10 Income tax

23

The relationship between the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of Energy Mad
Limited at 28% (2011 30%) and the reported tax expense In the Statement of Comprehensive Income can be
reconciled as follows, also showing major components of tax expense Legislation has passed to reduce the
company tax rate to 28% from 1 Apnl 2011 and therefore an adjustment is made to deferred tax to adjust for the

tax rate change for the 2011 year All income tax losses have been recognised as a deferred tax asset

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit / {loss) before tax from continuing
operations {1,166,391) 908,060 (9,708,284) (260,771)
Profit/ {loss) before tax from discontinuing
operatons {186,691) (894,778) - -
Profit/ {loss) before taxation {1,353,082) 13,282 (9,708,284) (260,771)
Domestic tax rate for Energy Mad Limited 28% 30% 28% 30%
Expected tax expense (378,863) 3,984 (2,718,320) (78,232)
Effect of tax rate change on temporary
differences - 165,055 14,076
Adustment for non taxable mcome and expenses 118,709 (75,671) 2,672,669 -
Adjustrent in respect of previous years 54,805 - (828) -
Actual tax expense {205,349) 93,368 (46,478) (64,156)
Tax expense comprises:
Deterred tax expense 237,793 79,751 37.250 78,232
Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences 22,361 (8,065) 8,400
Effect of tax rate change on temporary
differences - (165,055) - (14,076)
Adustment in respect of previous years (54,805) - 828 -
Tax (expense) / revenue 205,349 {93,368) 46,478 64,156
Taxable profit / (loss) (849,260) (265,838) (133,036} (260,772)
Losses brought forw ard (8,145,016 {7,879,178) {703,760} (442,888)
Adjustment in respect of previcus years 195,731 - (2,957) -
Losses to carry forward (8,798,545) {8,145,016) (839,753) {703,760)
ik Imputation credits
The movements in the imputation credit account are as follows
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance 1 Apnl 9,273 8,491 -
Income tax pad 3,973 783 81
Income tax refunded - -
Balance 31 March 13,246 9,273 at -
12 Dividends declared and paid

Ne dividends were declared or paid by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 {2011 $nil)
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13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include the following components
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Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash at bank and in hand 583,569 94,106 - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 583,569 94,106 - -
14 Trade and other receivables
Group Group Compeany Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade recewvables 1,024,629 272,407 41,904 -
Goods & services tax refunds - (60,251) -
Sundry debtors 93,665 - -
Prepayments 173,353 - - -
Share and nvestment loan capital ow ing {Fuan Ecobulb) - 495,358 -
Share capdal ow g (31 March 2011) - 650,000 - 650,000
Total trade and other recelvables 1,296,647 1,358,514 41,304 650,000
15 Inventories
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Ecobubs 1,259,879 281,786 - -
Stock deposits 129,359 40,470 - -
Stock on w ater 321,739 - - .
Total inventories 1,710,977 322,256 - -

The cost of inventories for the year 1s included in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income:

16 Investment In subsidiarles

The Company's Investment in the subsidiaries comprises shares at cost less impairment All subsidianes have a
reporting date of 31 March and are incorporated in New Zeatand with the exception of Energy Mad US LL.C which

15 ncorporated in the United States of America

Subslidiaries Princlpal activity Shareholding Sharehalding Company Company

2012 2011 2012 201
% %

Energy Mad NZ Limted (Formerly Energy Mad Limted) Energy eliciency 100 100 1,000 1000

Inteflectual Property Enargy Mad Lmed Intefectual property 100 100 -

Energy Mad Buid Limted nvestment 100 100 -

EcaSmartHomas Limted

(business discontinued) Energy eticiency 100 100 -

Energy Mad US LLC Energy elfcency 100 100 65,660 -

Total investment in subsidiaries 66,660 1,000
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17 Other financial assets

Share capital Fuzhou Ecobulb Ltd

The Group held a 50% investment in a purpose bullt factory in China under the trading name of Fuypan Ecobulb
Co Limited {Fupan Ecobulb) The investment was made with Fujian Yongde) Group Co Limited (YDJ} A
commercial agreement was entered on 23 November 2009 where Energy Mad Build Limited was repaid 5% of
the lpan advance and 5% of the share capial by Fupan Ecobulb A further agreement was entered on 31 March
2011 where Energy Mad Build Limited was repaid 25% of the loan advance and 25% of the share capital by
Fujian Ecobul As part of this agreement the Group does not receive a percentage share of the profit or loss of
Fupan Ecobulb Instead, Fupan Ecobulb will make fixed payments each year to the Group as follows

Proflt Share
Fujian BEcobulb {USD) 07775 (NZD) Payment Date
31-Dec-11 42,000 54,019 30-Apr-12
31-Dec-12 42,000 54,019 30-Apr-13
31-Dec-13 46,000 59,164 30-Apr-14
Total profit share 130,000 167,202

For this reason the investment in Fujian Ecobulb 1s not accounted for as an associate of the Group under NZ [AS
28 The investment is not carried at farr value as the financial information from China is unaudited As such the
investment 1s recorded at cost and 1s tested for mpairment where there 1s evidence of imparment indicators No
impairment has been recognised in the current financial year The Directors believe it can clearly be
demonstrated that the Group does not have significant influence over Fupan Ecobulb

Movements in the Group ownership percentage of Fupan Ecobulb

Ownership 1 April 2008 50%
Less sale 23 November 2009 -5%
Less sale 31 March 2011 -25%
Ownership 31 March 2012 20%

Movements in the carrying value of the investment in Fujan Ecobulb by the Group

March March
2012 2011

Balance 1 April
investment Fupan Ecobulb 1,353,424 3,047,774
Less sale of investment (2011 25%]) - (1,694,350)
Closing balance 1,353,424 1,353,424

Investment loan capital Fuzhou Ecobuli Ltd

The Group advanced investment loan capital of $910,024 USD to Fupan Yongde) Group Co Limited as at 31
March 2008 The investment loan capial did not earn any interest and there were no formal repayment plans
agreed The investment loan capiial was deemed to be imparred and wntten down to a fair value of il duning the
year ended 31 March 2008 The carrying value of the investment loan capital 1s isted below




Energy Mad Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements
31 March 2012

Value Value
Year usp NZD
Investment loan capital (Fupan Ecobulb) 31-Mar-08 910,024 1,321,928
Imparment loss nvestment loan capdal 31-Mar-08 (910,024) {1,321,928)
Carrying value of invesiment loan
capital 31-Mar-12 - -

Investment loan capital of $72,661 USD was repaid to Energy Mad Buidd dunng the year ended 31 March 2009

This repayment was recogrused in the statement of other comprehensive income

A commercial agreement was entered on 23 November 2009 where Energy Mad Build was repaid 5% of the
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Investment loan caprtal of $83,736 USD An additional repayment was made of $26,263 USD These repayments

{$150,007 NZD) have been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March

2010

A turther agreement was entered on 31 March 2011 where Energy Mad Build will be repaid 25% of the

investment loan capital of $418,680 USD This repayment (3549,810 NZD) has been accrued and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income The repayment was made in June 2011

A summary of the investment loan capital repayments s listed below

Value Value

Year uUsp NZD
nvestment foan capttal {Fupan Ecobulb) 31-Mar-08 {910,024}
Repayment of investment loan capital 31-Mar-09 72,662 186,900
Repayment of investment loan capital 31-Mar-10 83,736 114,11
Addtional repayment 31-Mar-10 35,816
Repayment of mvestment loan capital 31-Mar-11 418,681 549,810
Closing value of investment loan capital 31-Mar-12 (334,945}
Carrying value of investment loan
capital 31-Mar-12 -

The outstanding investment loan capital balance of $334,945 USD with Fuzhou Ecobulb Lid has not been

recognised in the financial statements
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18 Property, plant and equipment
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There were no plant and equipment tmpairment losses for the Company or Group for the year ending 31 March

2012 (2011 $nil)

Office

Computer furniture and Matar Lab
Group equipment equipment vehicles Equipment Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 Aprd 2011 62,538 39,789 710 - 103,087
Additions, separately acquired 22,565 745 . 29,796 53,106
Addttions, purchased from subsidiary
EcoSmartHome Limited (discontinued) 126,762 17,829 16,516 - 161,107
Balance at 31 March 2012 211,865 58,363 17,226 29,796 317,250
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance 1 April 2011 {51,005) (19,490) (535) - (71,030)
Balance purchased from subskhary
EcoSmartHome Lined (discontmnued) (101,242) {8,917) {6,947} - (117,106}
Depreciation {21,259) {5,760) {2,934) (2,656) {32,609}
Balance 31 March 2012 (173,506) (34,167) {10,416) {2,656) (220,745)
Carrying amount 31 March 2012 38,359 24,196 6,810 27,140 96,505
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 Aprd 2010 58,578 39,789 710 - 99,077
Additions, separately acquirad 3,960 - - - 3,960
Balance at 31 March 2011 62,538 39,789 710 - 103,037
Depreclation and impairment
Balance 1 Apni 2010 (41,894} (14,754) (437) - {57,085}
Depreciation {5,975) (4,688} (98) - (10,761)
Disposals (3,136} (48) {3 184)
Balance 31 March 2011 {51,005) {19,490) (535) {71,030)
Carrylng amount 31 March 2011 11,533 20,299 175 - 32,008
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19 Intangible assets
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The Group has reviewed the trademarks and patents held Any trademarks or patents that were held for markets
where the Group has ne plans to enter have been identified and the carrying values have been writlen oft The
Group has reviewed the development costs for impairment for the year ended 31 March 2012 There was no
impairment write off for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 $18,817)

Research and Trademarks

Group development and patents Softw are Total
Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 April 2011 1,611,226 395,600 36,340 2,043,166
Addions, separately acquired - 23,962 4,947 28,909
Addions, internally developed 505,591 - - 505,591
Disposals - {140,715) (1.785) {142,500}
Balance at 31 March 2012 2,116,817 278,847 39,502 2,435,166
Amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 April 2011 (498,588} {188,460) {32,120) (720,168)
Amortisation {305,397} {29,802) (2,503) (337,702)
Imparrment - - - -
Disposals - 140,715 1,392 142,107
Balance at 31 March 2012 (803,985) (78,547) (33,231) (915,763)
Carrying amount 31 March 2012 1,312,832 200,300 6,271 1,519,403

Researchand Trademarks

Group development and patents Software Total
Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 Aprd 2010 1,217,342 364,500 36,340 1,618,182
Addtions, separately acquired - 31,100 31,100
Additions, internally developed 393,884 - 393,884
Balance at 31 March 2011 1,611,226 395,600 36,340 2,043,166
Amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 (201,014) (144,735} (25,610} (377.646)
Arorisation (297 574} (22,538} (6,207) (326,319)
Imparment - (18,817) - {18,817)
Dsposals - {3,370} {303} {3,673)
Balance at 31 March 2011 (498,588) (189,460) {32,120) (720,168)
Carrying amount 31 March 2011 1,112,638 206,140 4,220 1,322,998

The impatrment model used to determine the value in use 1s based on the forecasts used to support the carrying
value of the deferred tax asset The key assumptions used are based on market evidence which are set out In

Note 20

In addition a pre tax discount rate of 20% has been apphed to the cash flow forecasts together with a terminal

growth rate assumption of 2%
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20 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assels/ (labiliies) ansing from temporary differences can be surnmansed as follows

Recognised In

Group 1-Apr-11  profit or loss 31-Mar-12
Assets
Tax losses 2,280,604 182,989 2,463,593
Liabiltes 5,600 3,665 9,265
Erployee benefits 24,560 18,695 43,254
2,310,764 205,349 2,516,113
Hfect of
change In tax
rate on
Recogmised in temporary
Group 1-Apr-10 profitor loss  differences 31-Mar-11
Assets
Tax losses 2,363,754 79,751 - 2,280,604
Liabilities 13,200 (7.200) - 5,600
Employee benefits 27,179 (B65) - 24,560
2,404,132 71,686 (165,055) 2,310,764

Recognised in

Com pany 1-Apr-11  profit or loss 31-Mar-12
Assets
Tax losses 197,052 38,078 235,130
Liabilities - 8,400 8,400
Employee benelits - - -
197,052 46,478 243,530
Efect of
change in tax
rate on
Recognised in temporary
Company 1-Apr-10 profit or loss  differences 31-Mar-11
Assets
Tax losses 132,896 78,232 - 197,062
Liabilbes - - - -
Employee benefts - - - -
132,896 78,232 (14,075) 197,052

Despite the loss incurred in the current financial year, the reasons for which are set out in Note 36, the Directors
expect the tax losses to be realised in the foreseeable future This expectation 1s based upon the assessable
income being calculated from projected four year income statements based on a Board approved business plan,
which has, as its key assumptions, the following

29
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- Significant revenue growth from key exisiing customers,
- Revenue growth from new customers,
- Accelerating revenue growth in a new division Direct Sales,

- Ermission reduction programmes in Victoria and New South Wales continuing in therr current quantities for
the foreseeable future,

- Gross margins maintained at existing levels,
- Operating expenses increasing in ine with the growth in Direct Sales, and

- Foreign currency rates, particularly the Australian dollar rate used 15 0 77

21 Trade and other payables
Group Group Company Com pany
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade payables 1,053,390 483,166 . -
Sundry accruals 382,701 2,882 30,650 600
Good and services tax 15,971 - - -
Total trade and other payables 1,452,062 486,047 30,650 600
22 Revenue received in advance
Group Group Com pany Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Depaosits from customers 97,773 69,858 - -
Total revenue received 1n advance 97,773 69,858 - -
23 Employee benefits
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Annual leave accruals 46,530 80,771 -
Sick leave accruals 11,534 2,882 - -
Bonus accruals 96,519 60,944 - -
Salary accrual - 13,937

Total employee benefits 154,583 158,534 - -
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24 Convertible loans {unsecured)
Convertible loans (unsecured} include the following habilities

Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Convertible leans (unsecured) - 657,437 - 657,437
Total convertible 1oans {(unsecured) - 657,437 - 657,437

Convertible loans (unsecured) Winteray intreduced investors

The loans accrue interest at a compound rate of 12% per annum, calculated and accrued daily The interestis
paid quarterly The repayment date for the Wanteray introduced investors loan was overdue as at 31 March 2011
and was repayable on demand The lenders have the option to convert therr loans to eguity at 30 cents per share

The Winteray convertible loans were repaid during the year

25 Convertible loans (secured)
Convertible loans {secured) include the following

Group Group Company Com pany

2012 201 2012 2011

Convertible loans (secured) - 336,479 - 336,479
Total convertible loans (secured) - 336,479 - 336,479

Convertible loans {secured) Winteray

Winteray Capual Pty Limited loaned the sum of $500,000 AUD ($634,583 NZD) to Energy Mad Limited The loan
amount accrues interest at a compound rate of 10% per annum, calculated and accrued daily The interest 1s
capitalised until the loan 1s converted to shares or repaid The loan was repayable on 24 July 2010

The loan I1s secured by a charge over all the property of Energy Mad and Energy Mad Holdings Limited

When Winteray Capnal Pty Limited was placed in iguidation, the loan agreement was assigned to Winteray
Limited on 310 March 2010

The convertible loan can be converted to share capita! at the option of the holder

The Winteray convertible loan was repaid in full during April 2011 The secunty interest held by Winteray Lirmited
was released on 31 March 2011 on expectation of this payment

26 Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale and discontinued operations

At the end of the 2011 financial year management decided to discontinue EcoSmartHomes Limited
EcoSmartHomes Limited was onginally established to improve energy efficient in New Zealand homes under the
Warm up New Zealand Heat Smart programme There was a dectsion to close the business and tocus on the
sale of Ecobulbs

Revenue and expenses have been eliminated from the profit and loss from the Group's continuing operations and
are shown as a single line item in the Statements of Comprehensive Income
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2012 2011
Revenue 138,997 4,260,705
Cost of sales 105,872 2,836,590
Gross profit 33,125 1,424 115
Total expenses 171,054 2,318,316
Results from operating activitles (137,929) (894,801)
Finance incorme 11 23
Finance expenses 48,773 -
Net finance costs (48,762) 23
Profit / (loss) before taxation (186,691) (8594,778)
income tax expense - -
Protit / (loss) from discontinued
operations (186,691) (894,778)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies in this disposal group are recognised in the Statements of Financial
Position and may be summarnsed as follows

2012 2011
Current assets
Cash and cash equwalents 2179 21,869
hventonies 9,460 36,694
Trade and other recewvables 6,854 241,265
Total current assets 18,533 299,828
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment - 75,936
Total non current assets - 75,936
Total assets 18,533 375,764
Current habllities
Trade and other payables 11,882 700,871
Revenue received in advance - 119,605
Employee entitlements - 2,094
Loans and borrow ings - 413,770
Total current habilities 11,882 1,236,340
Total liabilities 11,882 1,236,240

EcoSmartHomes Limited 1s being retained to protect tax losses to offset future taxable income

The loan (Alpine Wear) was repaid during the year

The carrying values of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are consider to be a reasonable
approxirnation of far value as all amounts as short terms

Cash flows generated by EcoSmartHomes Limited for the pertods under review can be summarised as follows
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2012 2011
Operating actvities (716,084) {1,221,382)
nvesting actvities 75,936 17,026
Financing actvities (413,770) 405,958
Cash flows from discontinued
operatlons {1,053,918} {798,398}
27 Contributed equity

All ordinary shares have an equal nght to vote, to dividends and to any surplus on winding up
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Group and Group and
Company Company
2012 2011
Shares i1ssued and fully pad
Beginning of the year 11,339,767 10,283,215
Share 1ss5us 5,076,500 1,091,915
Listing Expenses (822,682) (35,363)
Total shares authorised 15,593,585 11,339,767
Raconciliation of the Number of Shares
Opening Shares on ksus 65,355,374 61,316,432
Shares ssued, Fully Pad at $0 55 Per Share .
Shares kssued, Fully Paid at $0 30 Per Share - 1,473,052
Shares Issued, Fully Pad at $0 30 Per Share - 500,000
Shares lssued, Fully Pad at $0 24 Per Share - 2,065,890
Share consglidation of 500 for every 1,000 shares (1 July 2011} (32,677,684)
Shares 1ssued, Fully Pad at $1 00 Per Share 5,076,500 -
Total number of shares 37,754,190 65,355,374

The Group executed a share consclidation, effective from 1 July 2011, whereby 500 shares 1n every 1,000 shares

were consolidated

The Group 1ssued 5,076,500 new shares by way of new equity on the NZX on 18 October 2011

Each share has the same right to vote, to dividends and to any surplus on winding up

Costs associated with the IPO

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
The total costs associated w ith the PO
can be analysed as follow s
Drrect IPO costs (822,682) {35,363) (822,682) (35,363)
Total costs associated with IPO (822,682) (35,363) (822,682) {35,363)
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The direct costs of the IPQ include legal, accounting and tax due diigence and advice, prospectus design and

printing, adverhsing, marketing, share registry and other expenses The direct costs have been allocated and

accounted for as a reduchion in equity as follows

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Reduction In equity {822,682) {35,363) {B822,682) (35,363)

28 Earnings per share

Both the basic and diluied earnings per share have been calculated using the profit / (loss) for the year from

conlinuing operations attributable to shareholders of the Company No options to subscribe for securiies have

been or are granted in respect of the Company

The weighted number of shares used Is as follows

Group and Group and
Company Company
2012 2011
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Basic 34,958,638 61,327,498
Conversion of convertible loans - 8,263
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Diuted 34,958,638 61,335,761
Earnings per share
Basic earnngs per share
Profit / {loss) from continuing operations {961,042) B14,692
Loss from discontinued operatians (186,691) (894,778)
Total loss for the year {1,147,733) (80,086)
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share '
Protit / {loss) from continuing operations (0 03) oo
Loss fromdiscontinued operations {0 01) (0 01)
Total {0 03) {0 00)
Diluted earnings per share
Profit / (Loss} from continuing cperations {0 03) oo1
Loss fromdiscontinued operations {0 01) (001)
Total {003) (0 00)
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29 Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of financial Instruments presented in the statement of financial position relate to the
following categories of assets and liabilties

Group Group Company Company
2012 201 2012 2011

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 585,748 115,975 - -
Trade and other recewables 1,152,081 1,617,540 36,762 650,000
1,737,829 1,733,515 36,762 650,000

Other investments

Equity investment in Fupan Ecobulb 1,353,424 1,353,424 - -
Advances 1o subsidianes - - 4,944,305 10,820,282

1,353,424 1,353,424 4,944 305 10,820,282

Other financial liabilities

Other amortised cost

Trade and other payables 1,463,944 1,186,918 30,650 600
Convertible kans (unsecured) - 1,071,207 - 657,437
Convertible loans (secured) - 336,479 - 336,479

1,463,944 2,584,604 30,650 994,516

All financial imstruments have been recogrised according with the accounting policy 1n Note 4 10

30 Financial instrument risks

Financial nsk comprises market risk (interest rate risk and foreign exchange nisk) credit risk and iquidity nsk The
Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise and adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group

301 Market risk

302 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates The Group's main interest rate nsk anses from the borrowings on the
Convertible loans as disclosed in Notes 24 and 25 The nsk 1s managed by the Group by monitoring market
Interest rates and reviewing the impact of these on inlerest rate exposure Fixed rates will be used if analysis
determines that interest rates are lkely to centinue ncreasing

The following table summarses the Group exposure to interest rate risk
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Exposure to interest rate risk Weighted
average
effectve

2012 nterest

rate

Group

Financlal assets

Cash and cash equivalents 220%
Trade and other recevables NA
Equity nvestment n Fujian Ecobulb NA

Financial llabilitles

Trade and other payables NA
Convertible loans {unsecured) 0 00%
Convertible loans {secured) 0 00%
Company
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents NA
Trade and other recevables NA
Advances to subsidtanes 300%

Financial habilities

Trade and other payables NA
Convertible loans {unsecured) 0 00%
Convertibie loans {secured) 000%
Exposure to interest rate risk Weighted
average
effectve
2011 interest
rate
Group
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -199%
Trade and other recenvables NA
Equity nvestment n Fupan Ecobuty NA

Financiat hiabilities

Trade and other payables NA
Convertible loans {unsecured) 1123%
Convertble bans {secured) 10 00%
Company
FAnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents NA
Trade recenvables NA
Advances to subsdares NA

Financial ltabillties

Trade and other payables NA
Convertble loans (unsecured) 12 00%
Convertible loans (secured) 10 00%
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Varable Nen-
nterest nterest
rate bearng Total
545,847 38,901 585,748
- 1,152,081 1,152,081
- 1,353,424 1,353,424
545,847 2,545,408 3,091,253
. 1,463,944 1,463,044
- 1,463,944 1,463,944
- 36,762 36,762
337,149 4,607,156 4,944 305
337,149 4,643,918 4,981,067
- 30,650 30,650
- 30,650 30,650
Variable Non
Interest nterest
rate beanng Tolal
(51,851) 167,826 115,975
- 1,617,540 1,617,540
- 1,353,424 1,353,424
(51,851) 3,138,780 3,086,939
- 1,186,918 1,186,918
1,071,207 - 1,071,207
336,479 - 336,479
1,407 686 1,186,918 2,504 604
650,000 650,000
10,820,282 10,820,282
11,470,282 11,470,282
600 600
657,437 - 857,437
336,479 - 336,479
993,916 600 994,516
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30.3 Sensitivity analysis
In managing interest rate nsks, the Group aims to reduce the tmpact of short term fluctuations on the Group's
earnings Over the longer term, however, changes i interest rates will affect reported profits

The tollowing tables summanses the impact of a 1% change in interest rates

tmpact of
Group Effect on equity Eftect on net profit
2012 2011 2012 20M
1% increase in Interest rates 5,458 {10,458) 5458 {10,458)
1% decrease in inlerest rates {5,458) 10,458 {5,458) 10,458
Company Bitect on equity Eftect on net profit
2012 2011 2012 2011
1% increase In interest rates 12,940 (9,939} 12,940 {9.939)
1% decrease n interest rates (12,940) 9,939 {12,940) 9,939

30.4 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange nsk i1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign
exchange nsk ansing from currency exposures being the United States Dollar (USD), Australian Dollar {AUD) and
the European Community Euro (EUR) The Group 1s exposed to currency sk on the conversion of the trading
results from subsidianes operating in the United States of Amenican and from doing business in Australia and
Europe The Group does not have a current hedging policy Exposures to currency exchange rates anse from the
Group's overseas sale and purchase commitments, which are primarily denominated in USD, AUD and EUR

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the New Zealand dollar
aganst the USD, AUD and EUR

Group Efect on equity Effect on net profit
2012 2011 2012 2011
10% increase in value of NZD vs USD, AUD and EUR {14,327) {20,140) (14,327) {20,140}
10% decrease in value of NZD vs USD, AUD and EUR 14,327 20,140 14,327 20,140
Company Eftect on equity Effect on net profit
2012 2011 2012 2011
10% increase in value of NZD vs USD (3,342) - (3,342) -
10% decrease in value of NZDvs USD 3,342 - 3,342 -

305 Credit risk

Credi nsk 1s the risk that counterparty will default en its contractual obligations resulbing in inancial loss to the
Group Financal instruments which potentially subject the Group to credit nsk principally consist of cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables The Group manages its exposure to credit nsk by monitoring
the credit qualty of the financial institutions that hold its cash balances The nature of the customer base s such
that there 1s no individual customer concentration of credit risk
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The following tables summanse the Group’s credit risk exposure to trade receivables

k1:

Credit risk - aging of recewvables Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

Not past due 684,491 1,376,237 8,463 650,000
Past due 0-30 days 321,809 61,982 - -
Past due 31-60 days 50,901 108,109 18,483 -
Past due 61-90 days 9,815 29,230 8,815 -
Past due more than 90 days 85,065 41,982 - -

1,152,081 1,617,540 36,762 650,000

2012 2011 2012 2011

Gross trade recewvables 1,152,081 1,617,540 36,762 650,000

Individual impairment - - -
Collectve imparment - - .

Trade recewables (net) 1,152,081 1,617,540 36,762 650,000

All receivables are considered to be fully collectble therefore no impairment has been provided

3086 Liquidity nsk
Liquidity nisk is the rnisk arising from the Group not being able to meet its obligations

Ultimate responsibility for iquidty risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an

appropriate iquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquicdity management requirements  The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching this with

the maturity profiles of financial abilities
307 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing captital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order 1o provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintan or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group considers only equity as capital
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Contraciual cash flow s tor financial instruments with fixed maturity dates

2012
Group

FAnanclal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other recenables

Financial liabilitles
Trade and other payables
Convertible loans (unsecured)
Convertible foans (secured)

Company

Fnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other recewvables

Financial lablitiea
Trade and other payables
Converiible lans (Unsecured)
Convertible bans (secured)

2011
Group

Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade recewvables

Financtal llabllities
Trade and other payables
Convartible loans {unsecured)
Converlible kans {secured)

Company

Fnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade recewvables

Financial llabliltles
Trade and other payables
Convertible loans (unsecured)
Convertible loans {secured)
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Total
Balance contractual Less than
sheet cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2 5 years 5 years +
585,748 685 748 585,748 - .
1,152,081 1,152,081 1,152,081
1,737,829 1,737,829 1,737,829 -
1,463,944 1,463,944 1,463,944 -
1,463,944 1,463,944 1,463,944 -
Total
Balance contractual Less than
sheet cash flows 1 year 1 2years 2-5 years 5 years +
36,762 36,762 36,762 -
3g,762 38762 38,762 - - -
30 650 30,650 30,650 - - -
30,650 30 650 30 850 - - -
Total
Balance contractual Lass than
sheet cash flows 1 year 1-2years 2-5years Syears +
115,975 115,975 94,106 - -
1 617,540 1617 540 1 617 540 -
1,733,515 1,733,515 1,711,646 - -
1186918 1186918 486 047 -
1,071,207 1,088,447 1,088,447 -
336,479 336 479 336 479 ' -
2,594,604 2,611,844 1,910,973 -
Total
Balance contractual Less than
sheet cash flow s 1 year 1-2 years 2 5years 5 years +
650,000 850 000 650,000 -
$50,000 550,000 650,000 - - -
600 600 600 - -
657,437 857,437 657,437 - -
336,479 336,479 336,479 - -
994,516 994,516 994,516 - -
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) | Operating lease commitments
At 31 March 2012, the Group had cperating lease commitments in respect of property At 31 March 2012, total
future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases were payable as follows

2012 20Mm
Total future Total future
minimum Property & minimum Property &
Group payments equipment payments equipment
Less than one year 119,113 119,113 67,944 67,944
Betw een one and five years 85,281 85,281 50,888 50,888
More than five Years - - - -
204,394 204,384 118,832 118,832
2012 2011
Total future Total future
minimum Property & minimum Property &
Company payments equipment payments equipment

Less than one year - - .
Betw een one and five years - - - R
More than five years - - - -

32 Statement of cash flows

Reconcilation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in bank and
investments in money market nstruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement Is reconciled to the related tems in the statement of
financial position as follows

Reconciltation of profit for the penod 1o net operating cash flows

Group Com pany

2012 2011 2012 2011

NZ§ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$
Net pratt / (loss) after tax from continuing operations (961,042) 814,692 (9,661,806} (196,614}
Adstments for
Depreciation and amortisaton 370310 355,897 -
hvestment loan capdal repaid - (549,810) -
Frparment in advances to subsdares 9 451,964

{590,732} 620,779 {209,842} {196,614}
Change n inventories (1,388,721) 1,163,970 -
Change in trade & other recevables {1,061,366) 949,764 (41,904) -
Change n Irade & other payables 989,801 (1,415,747} 29,968 (81 095)
Change in employee benefits (3,951) 67,938 -
Change in defarred tax asset {205 349) 93 368 (46,478} (64,156}

Net cash from operating activities (2,260,319) 1,480,071 {268,256) (341,864)
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33 Capital commitments
There were no capital commitments at 31 March 2012 (2011 $nil)

34 Contingent assets and liabllities

341 Contingent assets

The Company generated 73,173 Verified Voluntary Carbon Units (VCU's) from New Zealand Household Energy
Etficient Lighting Projects The VCU's created were audited by Det Norkse Vertitas on the 13th November 2008
The Directors have assessed the carbon credits to have a value of $6 per unit at year end A summary of the
number of carbon credit units sold since 13th November 2008 is listed below

$6 per unit
Units Value
13 November
Verified carbon credits 2008 73,173 438,038
Less sold {8,427) (50,562)
Closing balance 31 March 2009 64,746 388,476
Less sold (11,444) (68,664)
Closing balance 31 March 2010 53,302 319,812
Less sold (5,920) (35,520)
Closing balance 31 March 2011 47,382 284,292
Less sold {4,329} {25,974)
Closing balance 31 March 2012 43,053 258,318

The company has a further 328,839 projected carbon credits relating to pre 2008, which have not been audited
The verified and projected carbon credits have not been recognised in the statement of financial position or
statement of comprehensive income, as they do not meet recognition critenia

34.2 Conlingent habilities

There wera no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2012 (2011 The Group i1ssued $500,000 of share capstal to a
new investor which remained unpaid at balance date The Group made an undertaking to this investor that if the
IPO on the NZX was not successfully completed by 31 March 2012 the shares will be repurchased from this
investor This 1s no longer required as the Company has listed )
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35 Related parties

42

The Company entered into the following balances payable / recevable with its subsidianies These balances were
impaired duning the year resulting in balances due from subsidianies For terms and conditions refer below

Energy Mad NZ Limited

Group Group Parent Parent
2012 201 2012 2011
Advances to subsidiary - 7179715 5,266,475
Imparment of advance (5,562,490)
Due from subsiiary - 1,617,225 5,266,475
Intellectual Property Energy Mad Limited
Group Group Parent Parent
20t2 201 2012 2011
Advances to subsichary - 2,619,622 2,093,082
Impairment of advance - {1,037,002)
Due from subsidiary - 1,582,620 2,003,082
Energy Mad Build Limited
Group Group Parent Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
Advances to subsidiary - 2,214,784 2,674,836
Imparment of advance - - {814,123) -
Due from subsidiary - 1,400,661 2,674,836
Energy Mad LLC (United States}
Group Group Parent Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
Advances to subsidiary - 1,294,029 751,688
Imparment of advance - {956,880) -
Due from subsidiary - 337,149 751,688
EcoSmartHome Ltd {Discontinued)
Group Group Parent Parent
2012 2011 2012 2011
Advances to subsidary - - 1,088,119 34,201
Impairment of advance (1,081,469)
Due from subsidiary - - 6,650 34,201
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The amounts receivable / payable are unsecured and no guarantees are in place No interest s charged on
amounts owing between Group entities other than Energy Mad US LLC which pays interest on the Company
advance at 3% per quarter (2011 nil)

The Direclors have reviewed the individual subsidary advances as at 31 March 2012 and compared these with
the underlying assets of the subsidiaries The Directors deemed the indwidual advances 1o be impaired and have
writien them down to their recoverable amounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 nil)

The imparment loss was recoegnised in the statement of comprehensive income

The Group and Company entered into the following transactions and had balances payable/receivable with the
following related parties

Receivables due from related parties

Transaaction Transactlon Balance Balance
value for year value for year ocutstanding outstanding

2012 2011 2012 2011
Chrs Mardon 1,586 22,371 23,957 22371
Thomas Mackenze 821 20,865 21,686 20,865

The executive Directors expect to repay these balances by the 30th September 2012

Trade payables to related parties

Transaction Transactlon Balance Balance

value for year  value for year outstanding outstanding

2012 2011 202 201

Fuiian Yongde) Group Co Limted 4,107,234 4,140,729 869,092 (64,431)

Energy Mad Limited purchases Ecobulbs from Fujian Yondey Group Co Limited

Loans from reiated partles

Balance Balance
Loan Interest Pald outstanding outstanding
2012 2012 2012 2011

Mackenze Clan Famly Trust 150 000 5,795 -

During the period the Mackenzie Clan Family Trust advanced a short term loan of $150,000 to the Group
Thomas Mackenzie has a beneficial interest in this trust Interest was charged at 10% and the interest and loan
balance were repard in full dunng the pericd

Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authonty and responsibibity for planning,

directing and contrelling the actmvities of the Group, and include the Managing Director and his direct reports The
following 1able summanses remuneration pad to key management personnel
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Key management personnel remuneration

2012 201

Short-term ermployee benefits 1,280,663 837,631

Other related parties

Andrew Plympton and Andrew Meehan are Directors of Energy Mad Limited and were Directors of Intermoco
Limited, a shareholder of Energy Mad Limited

Andrew Plympton resigned from his position as Director of Intermoco Limited on 28 Apni 2011

Andrew Meehan resigned from his position as Directer of Intermoco Limited on 23 November 2011

Chnistopher Mardon and Thomas Mackenzie are Directors of Fupan Yongdep Group Co Limited

An agreement was entered on 31 March 2011 where Energy Mad Build Limited was repaid 25% of the loan
advance and 25% of the share capital by YDJ as disclosed in Note 17 The funds from the share capital and loan

advance repayments were offset against an accounts payable balance in Energy Mad Limited that was owing to
Fupan Ecobulb The balance of the cash payment received was $473,234
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36 Comparison against prospectus forecast

Actual amounts presented are from the full year inancial statements and as such include part year costs of the
pre-IPO costs along with part year reflection of the higher costs due to operating as a listed company

Statement of comprehensive income Actual IPO Ditt
For the year ended 31 March 2012 $ $ 3
Revenue from ecobulb projects 5,509,866 11,492770 (5,982,874)
Revenus fromecobulb retal sales 87,001 586,560 {499,559)
Revenus fromecobulb direct installation 214,870 1,196,800 (982,230)
Cther revenue 397,165 340,000 57,165
Total revenue 6,208,632 13,616,130 (7,407,498}
Cost of sales (3,804,964) (7,075,080) 3,270,116
Gross profe 2,403,668 6,541,050 (4,137,382) !
Total operating expenses (3,133,051) (3,010,480) (122,571}
EBITDA (729,383) 3,530,570 (4,259,953)
Depreciation & amortisaton {370,310) {392,890} 22,580
i
EBIT (1,099,693) 3,137,680 {4,237,373)
Interest revenue & expense (66,698) {28,750) {37,948)
Net profit / (loss) before tax (1,166,391) 3,108,930 (4,275,321)
Tax expense 205,349 (951,200) 1,156,549

Net profit / {loss) after tax from continuing

operations (961,042) 2,157,730 (3,118,772}
Profit/(loss) from discentnued operations (186,691) (15,100) {171,591)
Net profit/(loss) after tax (1,147,733) 2,142,630 (3,290,363)

Section 4 5 of the Specific Assumptions (pages 57 and 58) of the Company’s {PO Prospecius listed ten key
assumptions underlying the projected revenues from the sale of Ecobulbs

The first mine of those key assumptions remained broadly valid for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 The
lower than forecast results were due to cash constraints prior to the |PO that defayed fulfilling large Australian
Ecobulb orders, unexpected delays in the manufacture of Energy Mad's Ecobulb Downlights in China, obtaiming
20,000-hour accreditation for its “spiral” Ecobulb in Austraha, and the time taken to secure a substantal customer
in a key overseas market
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The tenth assumption included an assumption that the Group would successfully complete its current negotiations
regarding retail relabionships with two nattonwide retall chains in New Zealand in the second half of 2011, and
with ane nationwide retail chain in Austrahia

The Group focused its retail resourcing on securing the United States Walgreen opportunity and the large
potential of 8,200 store naticnwide retail distnbution An initia! stocking erder worth $1 7 mulkon was received on ‘
24 May 2012 This opportumity imited the Group's focus 1n pursuing retail distribution in New Zealand and

Austraha ‘

Cost of goods sold was lower than forecast as a result of the revenue shortfall as explained above and higher
freighting costs

Gross profit was lower than forecast as explained above due to higher margin Ecobulb Downlights not being
delivered on time, the mix of products sold and higher than expected freighting costs

Total operating expenses were higher than forecast and broadly in line with expectations
EBITDA was lower than forecast as a result of the explanations above

EBIT was lower than forecast as a result of the explanations above and lower than expected depreciation and
amortisation expense

Net profi / (loss) before income tax was lower than forecast primarnly due to gross margin shortfall and higher
than expected operaling expenses and net interest costs

Taxation expense was lower than forecast due to lower than expected earnings

Net profit / (loss) after tax from continuing operations was lower than forecast as a result of the explanations
above

Profit / {loss} from discontinued operations were fugher than forecast due to higher than expected time taken to
close the operation

Net profit / (loss) after tax was lower than forecast as a result of the explanations above
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Summary statement of financlal

position Actual Forecast Difference
As at 31 March 2012 2012 2012 2012
NZD NZD NZD
Current assets 3,613,085 8,853,520 (5,340,435}
Non current assets 5,503,978 4,569,200 834,778
Current habilities 1,716,300 2,737,180 {1,020,880)

Non current labiities - - .
Share capital 15,593,585 15,739,767 (146,182)

Retaned earnings and reserves {losses) (8,192,822} {4,954,227) (3,238,595)

Current assets were lower than forecast due to revenue shortfalls as explained above impacting cash, trade and
other receivables Part of the reduction in cash 1s lower than expected customer deposits which has been oftset
by an increase in inventory to ensure sales orders could be fulfiled more effictently

Non current assets were higher than forecast due to a higher deferred tax asset as a result of lower earnings
Partly offset by a reduction in intangible assets due to cost capitalisation being lower than expected

Current liabilities were lower than forecast due to lower than expected trade and other payables and lower than
expected revenue received 1n advance (customer deposits)

Share Capital was lower than forecast due to slightly wgher capial raised offset by higher issue costs

Retained earnings and reserves (losses) were lower than forecast due to lowered earnings after tax

Statement of cash flows Actual Forecast Ditference
As at 31 March 2012 2012 2012 2012
NZD NZD NZD
Net Cash flow s from operating actvhies (2,976,403) 2,663,670 (5,640,073}
Net Cash tlow s frominvesting activites {82,041) (361,800} 279,756
Net Cash flow s from financing actvities 3,496,132 3,642,310 (146,178}
Net increase / (decrease) in csah 437,688 5,944,180 {5,506,492)
Cash at beginnung of period 94,106 94,110 (4}
Btect of foregn exchange rates 51,775 - 51,775
Cash at end of period 583,569 6,038,290 (5,454,721}

Net Cash flows from operating activities were lower than forecast due to lowered receipts from customers, lower
payments to suppliers (cost of goods sold), and higher than forecast payments for discontinued activites
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Net Cash flows from investing activites was lower due to lower investment in intangible assets and higher asset
sales from discontinued activiies

Net Cash flows from financing activities were lower than forecast due to higher 1ssue costs offset by higher than
forecast share capital raised

Effect of foreign exchange rates 1s higher than forecast due to movement in New Zealand deltar and United
States dollar exchange rates

The lower profit result contributed to lowered receipts from customers in operating activities, with also lower fixed
and intangible assets spend in nvesting activities, combined with reduced lean repayments, offset by tigher issue
costs in the financing activibes

37 Subsequent events

The Directors are not aware ot any other matenal matters or circumstances since the end of the reporting peniod,
not, otherwise dealt with in the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the
operations of the Group
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Corporate Governance

The role of the Board

The Board of Directors 1s etected by shareholders to govern Energy Mad Limited (the Group) in their interests

The Board s responsible for setting the strategic objectives of the Group and for supervising the Group's

management for the beneftt of the shareholders The specific responsibilities of the board including

« Ensuring the Group compligs with all the legal and regulatory requirements including compliance with NZX
Listing Rules,

« Working with management to set the strategic objectives and direction of the Group,

« Supervising and monttoring the management of the Group to achieve the strategic objectives, and to direct the
business and financial performance of the Group, and

« Establishing and overseeing succession plans for the Group's key executive posilions

The Board Is responsible for ensuring the Group is properly managed n order to protect and enhance
Shareholders’ interests The Directors take this responsibility senously and, to this end, the Board has adopted a
Board charter which sels out to enhance investor confidence through corporate governance and accountability
The Board has also established a Code of Ethics including provisions relating to conflicts of interest, corporate
information and property, compliance with laws, regulations and policies and Directors’ obligations

Delegation of Authority to the Managing Director

The formulation and implementation of policies and reporting procedures for management has been delegated to
the Managing Director as formal delegation terms The Board's delegation of the conduct of the day to day affarrs
of the Group to the Managing Director 1s made within these terms The Board monitors those delegations The
Managing Director in turn implements a Delegation of Authonty Policy which sets imuts on certain decision
making and achieves individual accountability

Membership size and composition

The Board comprises six Directors, being a non—executive Chatrman, two Executive Directors and three non—
executive Directors The Board has a broad range of energy, financial, sales, business and other skills and
expertise necessary 10 meet its objectives

Selection and role of Chairman

The Chairman 1s elected by the Board from the non—executive Directors The Board supports the separation of
the role of Charman and Managing Director The Chairman’s role 1$ 1o manage the Board effectively, to provide
leadership to the Board and to facilitate the Board's interface with the Managing Director

Director independence

The Board Charter requires that at a mmimum of two Directors be “independent” The Board has also agreed that
the Chairperson shall be independent and cannot also be the Managing Director At least two of the Directors
shall be ordinanly resident in New Zealand

As required by the NZSX listing rules, the Group's approach to Director independence Is to have regard for
relationships that could {or could be perceived to) matenally interfere with the independent judgement of a
Director The NZSX listing rules provide guidance as to the types of refationship that constitute *material
relationships affecting independence or the perception of independence
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The Board will review a Director’s independence in light of information that indicates the Director may have a
material relationship with the Group For this reason the Directors are required to advise the Board of any new or
changed relationships

The Board considers that Richard Ramsay, Phillip James, Andrew Meehan and Andrew Plympton to be
independent The Board determined that Christopher Mardon and Thomas Mackenzie not independent by virtue
of their executive responsibilities

Conflicts of interest

The Board Charter outlings the Board's policy on confiicts of interest Where conflicts of interest do exist at law,
Directors excuse themselves from discussions and do not receive the relevant paper in respect of those interests
In accordance with the relevant stock exchange listing rules, they will not exercise their right to vote in respect of
such matters

Nominations and appointment

From time to time the Board will review the composition of the Board and the Board will have the opportunity to
consider candidates for appointment To be eligible for sefection the candidates must demonstrale appropriate
qualties and experience Directors will be selected based on a range of factors including the perceived needs of
the Board at the time

Board Committees
Board Committees may be established in order to faciitate effective decision making Committees do not take
action or make decisions on behalf of the Board unless specifically mandated by prior Board authonty to do so

The current Committees of the Board are the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee An individual charter exists for each Committee Other Committees may be created from
time to time to examine or have the delegated authonty to deal with specific 1Issues on behalf of the Board

All Committee members and the Chairperson of the Committee are appointed by the Board

Director remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration 1s patd in the form of Directors’ fees The Board may determine that addittonal
allowances be paid to a Director, as appropriate, to reflect additional services provided 10 the Group by that
Drrector The total fees avalable 1o be paid to Direclors are subject to shareholder approval The Remuneration
and Nominations Committee reviews the remuneration of Directors based on criteria developed by that
Committee

Board access to informatioh and advice

A Committee or individual Director may retain and consult with external adwisers at the Company's expense
where the Committee or Individual deems it necessary to carry out Its, hus or her functions, with the approval of
the Chairperson of the Board

Non-executive Directors are not employees of the Group Non-executive Directors are entilled to rely on the
Group's executives, 1n relation to matters within therr responsibility and area of expertise and may assume the
accuracy of mformation provided by such persons, so long as the Director 1s not aware of any reasonable
grounds upon which such rellance or assumption may be inappropnate
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The Beard may rely upon information provided by Board Committees and their members in relation to matters
within that Board Commuttee’s delegated responsibility, provided that the Board has evaluated the information and
1s not aware of any reasonable basis upon which to question its accuracy

Director education

The Board seeks to ensure that any new Oirectors are introduced to management and the business and
acquainted with relevant industry knowledge and receive copies of appropnate Group documents to enable them
to perform their role

All Directors are expected to remain current on how to best discharge their responstbilities as Directors including
keeping abreast of changes and trends tn economic, political, social, financial and legal cimates and governance
practices

Directors’ shares’ ownership
All non-executive Directors are encouraged to hotd shares in Energy Mad Limited

Directors are subject to imitations on their ability to buy and selt Energy Mad Limited shares by the Group's
Insider Trading Policy and the Securities Market Act 1988 Directors cannot buy and sell Energy Mad Limited
shares duning the black-out periods from 1 February to the announcement of the Group’s half-year results and
from 1 September to the announcement of the Group's full year results Al trading 15 subject to prior approval of
the Chairperson (or in the Chairperson’s case by the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Management Committee)
All changes in the shareholdings of Directors are reported to the Board and the NZX

Board meetings

To enable appropnate review of Board matenals, Directors receve matenals approximately five days in advance
of meetings for tems to be acted upon, except in the case of special meetings for which the time peniod may be
shorter due to the urgency of the matter under consideration

The Board normally meets at least eight imes per year

The Board encourages the Managing Director to bring employees to Board meetings who can provide additional
insight into the items being discussed because of their involvement in those matters All Directors have access to
employees to discuss issues or abtain further information on specific matters as they feel approprate

The Board meets regularly in executive session without management present

Audit independence

One of the main putpeses of the Audit and Risk Management Commuttee 1s to ensure the quality ang
independence of the audit process The Chairman of the Committee and Chief Finangial Cfficer work with the
external auditors to plan the audit approach All aspects of the audit are reported back to the Committee and the
auditors are given the opportunity at Commitiee meetings to meet In executive session with the Board

Ethics

This Code outlines the Company’s expectaticns for all Group Directors and employees in professional behaviour,
and includes the conflicts of interest, code of conduct, gifts, confidentiality, corporate opportunity and use of the
Group's assels and information policies
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Disclosures

Eniries Recorded In The Interests Register

The following are particulars of entrres made in the Interests Register for the period 1 April 2011 ~ 31 March
2012

Directors’ interests Directors disclosed interests, or cessations of interest, in the following entities pursuant 1o
section 140 of the Companies Act 1993 during the year ended 31 March 2012

Interest Register

Phillip James

Legal and beneficial ow ner of 41,000 shares in Energy Mad
Limited

Christopher Mardon

10,250,000 shares in Energy Mad Limted via Mardon Family
Holdings Limsted of which Chnis 1s a Director

Legal ow ner of 139,050 shares in Energy Mad Limited

Thomas Mackenzie

10,360,000 shares in Energy Mad Limited via Mackers Family
Holdings Limited of which Tom s a Drector

Legal ow ner of 50 shares in Energy Mad Linsted

Andrew Plympton

Legal and beneficial ow ner of 37,000 shares in Energy Mad
Limited

Richard Ramsay

Netcon Limted Drrector
Alpine Energy Limted Owrector
Rockgas (Timaru} Limited Dwector
Salmon Smolt New Zealand Limited Orector
Pukala Arrport Board Board Member

12,000 shares in Energy Mad Limted jointly held with Vicky
Alias Mathias

Legal ow ner of 25,000 shares in Energy Mad Limited

Share dealings of Directors
The Directors disclose, pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act 1993, the follewing acquisitions and
disposals of relevant interests in Energy Mad Limited shares during the year ended 31 March 2012
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Date of

acquigition/ Consideration per

53

Numbear of shares

Share deelings of Directors disposal share acquired/{disposed)
Mackers Famly Holdings Limited {Thormas Mackenzse) 17horzot $ 100 110,000
Richard Rarrsay 17102011 § 100 12,000
Christopher Mardon 17/10/2011  § 100 139,000
Richard Ramsay (jointly held with Vicky Alas Mathias) 17/10/2011  § 100 25,000
Philip Jarmes 17/10/2011  § 100 41,000
Andrew Plympton 17102011 § 100 37,000
Shareholdings of Direclors as at 31 March 2012 Shares

Thomas Mackenzie (via Mackers Famly Holdings Limvted) 10,360,000

Christopher Mardon (via Mardon Farmy Holdings Limited} 10,250,000

Themas Mackenzie 50

Christopher Mardon 139,050

Andrew Plympton 37,000

Richard Ramsay (jointly held with Vicky Allas Mathias) 12,000

Richard Ramsay 25,000

Phillip James 41,000

Remuneration of Directors

Details of remuneration and the value of cther benefits recewved by each Director of the Group duning the financial

year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows

AddItlonal
Fees Baneflts Salary
Richard Ramsay 50,959 - -
Andrew Plympton 58,590 -
Phillip James 67,769 -
Andrew Meehan 37,531
Thomas Mackenzie - 32,365 263,075
Chnstopher Mardon 35,757 313,420
Total Director fees and salary 214,850 68,122 576,495

Employee remuneration

The following table shows the number of employees (including employees holding cffice of Directors of
subsidianes) whose remuneration and benefits for the year ended 31 March 2012 are within the specified bands
above $100,000 The remuneration figures shown 1n the table include all monetary payments actually pad during

the course of the year ended 31 March 2012

Number of employees 2012 2011
$100,000 - $109,999 2 1
$110,000 - 119,999 1 -
$140,000 - 149,999 2 -
$170,000 - 179,999 1 -
$260,000 - $269,999 - 2

$290,000 - $299,999
$340,000 - 348,999
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Num ber of Number of  %of Issued
Analysis of shareholding holders shares capltal
1 to 1000 81 74,761 020
1,001 to 5,000 267 900,000 238
5,001 to 10,000 90 826,006 219
10,001 to 100,000 74 2,274,618 603
100,001 and over 19 33,678,805 8921
Total 531 37,754,180 100 00
% of issued
Rank Shareholder rank and name Holding capital
1 Mackers Family Holdings Limited {Thomas Mackenzig} 10,360,000 27 44
2 Mardon Family Holdings Limited {Christopher Mardon) 10,250,000 2715
3 Capital Trading and Holding Corporation 3,125,000 gag
4 John Robert Hew son 1,900,000 503
5 New Zealand Central Securties Depository Limited 1,532,945 4 06
6 PRoa nvestments Limited 1,010,000 2868
7 Mngela Pty Limted 1,000,000 265
8 Mngela Pty Limted (Bisw as Superannuation Fund) 1,000,000 2865
9 Nessock Custodians Limied 628,034 166
10 Greentleece Holdings Py Limited 560,741 149
11 Bruce George Flested 500,000 132
12 Intermoco Limted 402,778 107
13 Longway Industries Co 400,000 106
14 Toocooya Nominees Limted 250,000 066
15 Saxonmac Pty Limited 227,450 080
16 Raphael Chakin 150,000 040
17 Chnstopher Mardon 139,000 037
18 Ron Spence 122,857 033
19  Woodw ard Partners Limited 120,000 032
20 Alpine Wear New Zealand Limnted 100,000 026

Substantial security holders
According to nolices given under the Securiies Market Act 1988 the following persons were Substantial secunty

holders in Energy Mad Limited as at 31 March 2012 in respect of the number of voting securnties set opposite

their name

Substantial security holders

Number of shares

John Robert Hew son
Caprtal Trading and Holding Corporaticn

Mardon Family Holdings Limited {Chnistopher Mardon}
Mackers Family Holdings Limited (Thomas Mackenzie}

1,900,000
3,125,000
10,250,000
10,360,000
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CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION
OF AN OVERSEA COMPANY

(Registration of a UK establishment)

Company No. FC030886

UK Establishment No. BR015948

The Registrar of Companies hereby certifies that

ENERGY MAD LIMITED

has this day been registered under the Companies Act 2006 as having
established a UK Establishment in the United Kingdom.

Given at Companies House on 11th July 2012.
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